COLUMBIA CARE INC.

June 2, 2021

Dear shareholders of Columbia Care Inc.:

On behalf of the directors and management team of Columbia Care Inc. (the "**Company**"), we are pleased to invite you to attend the Company's annual general and special meeting of the shareholders (the "**Meeting**"), to be held at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on July 2, 2021. This year, to deal with the ongoing public health impact of COVID-19, and to mitigate the risks to the health and safety of our communities, shareholders, employees and other stakeholders, we will hold the Meeting in a virtual only format, which will be conducted via live audio webcast.

At the Meeting, the holders of common shares and proportionate voting shares of the Company (the "**Shareholders**") will be asked to receive the audited annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, together with the report of the auditor thereon, elect the directors for the ensuing year (the "**Directors**"), re-appoint Davidson & Company LLP as the auditors of the Company and authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration and approve certain amendments to the Company's Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan.

As a valued Shareholder, your views and involvement in the Company are important to us. At the Meeting, you will have the opportunity to ask questions and vote on the Meeting matters.

Your vote matters. You may exercise it by completing the proxy form or voting instruction form or by virtually attending the Meeting. The accompanying management information circular describes the business to be conducted at the Meeting, important additional information and detailed instructions on voting and participation at the Meeting, and the Company's governance practices.

Thank you for your investment and we look forward to connecting with you at the Meeting.

Sincerely,

(Signed) "Nicholas Vita"

Nicholas Vita Chief Executive Officer and Director



COLUMBIA CARE INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JULY 2, 2021

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COLUMBIA CARE INC.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general and special meeting (the "**Meeting**") of the holders ("**Shareholders**") of common shares ("**Common Shares**") and proportionate voting shares ("**Proportionate Voting Shares**", and together with the Common Shares, "**Shares**") of Columbia Care Inc. (the "**Company**") will be held at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on July 2, 2021 virtually via live audio webcast online at *https://web.lumiagm.com/299018610* for the following purposes:

- 1. to receive the audited annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, together with the report of the auditor thereon;
- 2. to elect directors of the Company for the ensuing year. For more information, see "Business to be Transacted at the Meeting Election of Directors" in the Company's management information circular dated June 2, 2021 (the "Information Circular");
- 3. to appoint the auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the auditor. For more information, see "Business to be Transacted at the Meeting Appointment of Auditors" in the Information Circular;
- 4. to consider and, if deemed advisable, pass an ordinary resolution, the full text of which is attached as Schedule "B" to the Information Circular, approving certain amendments to the Company's Omnibus Long Term Incentive Plan. For more information, see "Business to be Transacted at the Meeting Amendments to Omnibus Plan" in the Information Circular; and
- 5. to transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Shareholders should refer to the Information Circular for more detailed information with respect to the matters to be considered at the Meeting. The Information Circular and other Meeting materials also contain important information with respect to voting your Shares and attending and participating at the Meeting.

This year, to deal with the ongoing public health impact of COVID-19, and to mitigate the risks to the health and safety of our communities, Shareholders, employees and other stakeholders, we will hold the Meeting in a virtual only format, which will be conducted via live audio webcast. Shareholders, regardless

of geographic location and equity ownership, will have an opportunity to participate at the Meeting and engage with Company leadership as well as other Shareholders. Shareholders will not be able to attend the Meeting in person.

Registered Shareholders and duly appointed proxyholders will be able to attend, participate and vote at the Meeting online at *https://web.lumiagm.com/299018610*. Shareholders who hold their Shares through a broker, investment dealer, bank, trust company, custodian, nominee or other intermediary ("**Beneficial Shareholders**") who have not duly appointed themselves as proxyholder will be able to attend as a guest and view the webcast but will not be able to participate or vote at the Meeting.

If you are a Registered Shareholder and are unable to virtually attend the Meeting, please exercise your right to vote by dating, signing and returning the accompanying form of proxy to Odyssey Trust Company ("**Odyssey**"), the transfer agent of the Company. To be valid, completed proxy forms must be dated, completed, signed and deposited with Odyssey by mail to: Odyssey Trust Company, Attention: Proxy Department, 67 Yonge Street, Suite 702, Toronto, Ontario M5E 1J8. You may also vote through the internet by going to *https://odysseytrust.com/login/* and click on VOTE and enter the 12 digit control number found on the form of proxy. Your proxy or voting instructions must be received in each case no later than 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on June 29, 2021 or two business days preceding the date of any adjournment or postponement. If you are unable to attend the Meeting, we encourage you to complete the enclosed form of proxy as soon as possible. If a Shareholder received more than one form of proxy because such holder owns Shares registered in different names or addresses, each form of proxy should be completed and returned. The Chairman of the Meeting shall have the discretion to waive or extend the proxy deadline without notice.

A Shareholder who wishes to appoint a person other than the management nominees identified on the form of proxy or voting instruction form, to represent him, her or it at the Meeting may do so by inserting such person's name in the blank space provided in the form of proxy or voting instruction form and following the instructions for submitting such form of proxy or voting instruction form. This must be completed prior to registering such proxyholder, which is an additional step to be completed once you have submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form. If you wish that a person other than the management nominees identified on the form of proxy or voting instruction form attend and participate at the Meeting as your proxy and vote your Shares, including if you are a Beneficial Shareholder and wish to appoint yourself as proxyholder to attend, participate and vote at the Meeting, you MUST register such proxyholder after having submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form identifying such proxyholder. Failure to register the proxyholder will result in the proxyholder not receiving a Username to participate in the Meeting. Without a Username, proxyholders will not be able to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting. To register a proxyholder, shareholders MUST send an email to colcare@odysseytrust.com and provide Odyssey with their proxyholder's contact information, amount of Shares appointed, name in which the Shares are registered if they are a registered Shareholder, or name of broker where the Shares are held if a Beneficial Shareholder, so that Odyssey may provide the proxyholder with a Username via email.

If you are a Beneficial Shareholder and receive these materials through your broker or through another intermediary, please complete and return the form of proxy in accordance with the instructions provided to you by your broker or by the other intermediary.

The board of directors of the Company has fixed June 2, 2021 as the record date for notice and for voting at the Meeting. Shareholders of record at the close of business on June 2, 2021 are entitled to notice of the Meeting and to vote thereat or at any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof on the basis of one vote for each Common Share held and 100 votes for each Proportionate Voting Share held, except to the extent that: (i) a registered Shareholder has transferred the ownership of any Shares subsequent to June 2, 2021, and (ii) the transferee of those Shares produces properly endorsed share certificates, or otherwise establishes that he, she or it owns the Shares and demands, not later than 10 days before the Meeting, that his, her or its name be included on the list of persons entitled to vote at the Meeting, in which case, the transferee shall be entitled to vote such Shares at the Meeting. The transfer books will not be closed.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Signed) "Nicholas Vita"

Nicholas Vita Chief Executive Officer and Director June 2, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES	2
ADVICE TO BENEFICIAL HOLDERS OF COMMON SHARES AND PROPORTIONATE VO SHARES	
VOTING OF PROXIES	4
VOTING AT THE MEETING	4
HOW TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING	5
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED ON	6
VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF	6
BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE MEETING	7
Receive the Financial Statements	7
Election of Directors	8
Appointment of Auditors	12
Amendments to Omnibus Plan	12
STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	13
2020 Performance Highlights	14
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	14
Summary Compensation Table	20
Incentive Plan Awards – Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards	20
Incentive Plan Awards – Value Vested or Earned During the Year	22
Deferred Compensation Plans	22
Termination and Change of Control Benefits	22
Director Compensation	27
Incentive Plan Awards – Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards	30
Incentive Plan Awards – Value Vested or Earned During the Year	31
SECURITY BASED COMPENSATION PLANS	32
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	37
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE	37
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS	37
OTHER BUSINESS	37
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	37
SCHEDULE "A" STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES	A-1
SCHEDULE "B" OMNIBUS PLAN RESOLUTION	B-1
SCHEDULE "C" COLUMBIA CARE OMNIBUS PLAN	C-1



COLUMBIA CARE INC. INFORMATION CIRCULAR

FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JULY 2, 2021

PURPOSE OF SOLICITATION

This information circular ("Information Circular") is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the management of Columbia Care Inc. (the "Company") for use at the annual general and special meeting (the "Meeting") of the holders ("Shareholders") of common shares ("Common Shares") and proportionate voting shares ("Proportionate Voting Shares", and together with the Common Shares, "Shares") of the Company.

The Meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on July 2, 2021 virtually via live audio webcast online at *https://web.lumiagm.com/299018610* and at any adjournments or postponements thereof for the purposes set forth in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the "**Notice of Meeting**") accompanying this Information Circular. Information contained herein is given as of June 2, 2021 unless otherwise specifically stated.

This year, to deal with the ongoing public health impact of COVID-19, and to mitigate the risks to the health and safety of our communities, Shareholders, employees and other stakeholders, we will hold the Meeting in a virtual only format, which will be conducted via live audio webcast. Shareholders, regardless of geographic location and equity ownership, will have an opportunity to participate at the Meeting and engage with Company leadership as well as other Shareholders. Shareholders will not be able to attend the Meeting in person.

Solicitation of proxies will be primarily by mail but may also be by telephone, facsimile, email or in person by directors, officers and employees of the Company who will not be additionally compensated therefor. Arrangements have been made with brokers, nominees or other persons holding Shares in their names for others to send the Notice of Meeting, Information Circular and the form of proxy for the meeting, the annual financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2020 and the related management's discussion and analysis, where applicable, and other meeting materials (collectively the "**Meeting Materials**") to the beneficial owners of the Shares held of record by such parties. Brokers, nominees or other persons holding Shares in their names for others may be reimbursed for their reasonable charges and expenses in forwarding proxies and proxy material to the beneficial owners of such Shares. The costs of soliciting proxies will be borne by the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

The information in this section applies to Shareholders who hold their own Shares in their own name and have a share certificate or direct registration system (DRS) statement (a "**Registered Shareholder**"). As a Registered Shareholder, you are identified on the share register maintained by the Company's register and transfer agent, Odyssey Trust Company ("**Odyssey**"), as being a Shareholder.

Enclosed herewith is a form of proxy for use at the Meeting. The persons named in the form of proxy are directors and/or officers of the Company. A Registered Shareholder submitting a proxy who wishes to appoint a person other than the management nominees identified on the form of proxy or voting instruction form, to represent him, her or it at the Meeting may do so by inserting such person's name in the blank space provided in the form of proxy or voting instruction form and following the instructions for submitting such form of proxy or voting instruction form. This must be completed prior to registering such proxyholder, which is an additional step to be completed once you have submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form. If you wish that a person other than the management nominees identified on the form of proxy or voting instruction form attend and participate at the Meeting as your proxy and vote your Shares, including if you are a Beneficial Shareholder and wish to appoint yourself as proxyholder to attend, participate and vote at the Meeting, you MUST register such proxyholder after having submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form identifying such proxyholder. Failure to register the proxyholder will result in the proxyholder not receiving a Username to participate in the Meeting. Without a Username, proxyholders will not be able to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting. To register a proxyholder, shareholders MUST send an email to colcare@odysseytrust.com and provide Odyssey with their proxyholder's contact information, amount of Shares appointed, name in which the Shares are registered if they are a registered Shareholder, or name of broker where the Shares are held if a Beneficial Shareholder, so that Odyssev may provide the proxyholder with a Username via email.

A Registered Shareholder who has given a proxy may revoke it prior to its use, in any manner permitted by law, including by an instrument in writing executed by the Registered Shareholder or by his, her or its attorney authorized in writing or, if the Registered Shareholder is a corporation, executed by a duly authorized officer or attorney thereof and deposited at the registered office of the Company at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment or postponement thereof, at which the proxy is to be used or with the chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

ADVICE TO BENEFICIAL HOLDERS OF COMMON SHARES AND PROPORTIONATE VOTING SHARES

The information set forth in this section is of significant importance to many Shareholders, as a substantial number of Shareholders do not hold Shares in their own name. Shareholders who do not hold their Shares in their own name (referred to in this Information Circular as "Beneficial Shareholders") should note that only proxies deposited by Registered Shareholders can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting. If Shares are listed in an account statement provided to a Shareholder by a broker, then in almost all cases those Shares will not be registered under the names of the Shareholder's broker or an agent of that broker (an "Intermediary"). In Canada, the vast majority of such shares are registered under the name of CDS & Co. (the registration name for CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc., which acts as nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms). Shares held by Intermediaries or their agents or nominees can only be voted upon the instructions of the Beneficial Shareholder. Without specific instructions, Intermediaries and their agents and nominees are prohibited from voting Shares for the Intermediary's clients. Therefore, Beneficial Shareholders should contact their broker or other Intermediary as soon

as practicable to ensure that instructions respecting the voting of their Shares are communicated to the appropriate person.

In accordance with the requirements of NI 54-101, the Company has distributed copies of the Meeting Materials to CDS & Co. and Intermediaries for onward distribution to Beneficial Shareholders as well as directly to NOBOs (as defined below).

Beneficial Shareholders fall into two categories - those who object to their identity being known to the issuers of the securities which they own ("**OBOs**") and those who do not object to their identity being made known to the issuers of the securities which they own ("**NOBOs**"). Subject to the provisions of NI 54-101, issuers may request and obtain a list of their NOBOs from Intermediaries directly or via their transfer agent and may obtain and use the NOBO list for the distribution of proxy-related materials to such NOBOs. If you are a NOBO and the Company or its agent has sent the Meeting Materials directly to you, your name, address and information about your holdings of Shares have been obtained in accordance with applicable securities regulatory requirements from the Intermediary holding the Shares on your behalf.

The Company's OBOs can expect to be contacted by their Intermediary. The Company does not intend to pay for Intermediaries to deliver the Meeting Materials to OBOs and it is the responsibility of such Intermediaries to ensure delivery of the Meeting Materials to their OBOs.

Applicable regulatory policy requires Intermediaries/brokers to seek voting instructions from Beneficial Shareholders in advance of shareholders' meetings. Every Intermediary or broker has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return instructions, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial Shareholders in order to ensure that their Shares are voted at the Meeting. Often, the form of proxy supplied to a Beneficial Shareholder by its broker is identical to the form of proxy provided to Registered Shareholders; however, its purpose is limited to instructing the Registered Shareholder how to vote on behalf of the Beneficial Shareholder. The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge Financial Services, Inc. ("Broadridge"). Broadridge typically mails a scannable voting instruction form in lieu of the form of proxy. The Beneficial Shareholder is requested to complete and return the voting instruction form to them by mail or facsimile. Alternatively, the Beneficial Shareholder can call a toll-free telephone number or visit www.proxyvote.com to vote the Shares held by the Beneficial Shareholder. Broadridge then tabulates the results of all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of Shares to be represented at the Meeting. A Beneficial Shareholder receiving a voting instruction form cannot use that voting instruction form to vote Shares directly at the Meeting as the voting instruction form must be returned as directed by Broadridge well in advance of the Meeting in order to have the Shares voted.

Although a Beneficial Shareholder may not be recognized directly at the Meeting for the purposes of voting Shares registered in the name of his, her or its broker (or agent of the broker), a Beneficial Shareholder may attend at the Meeting as proxyholder for a Registered Shareholder and vote the Shares in that capacity. Beneficial Shareholders who wish to attend at the Meeting and indirectly vote their Shares as proxyholder for a Registered Shareholder should enter their own names in the blank space on the instrument of proxy provided to them and return the same to their broker (or the broker's agent) in accordance with the instructions provided by such broker (or agent), well in advance of the Meeting.

VOTING OF PROXIES

If you are a Registered Shareholder and are unable to virtually attend the Meeting, please exercise your right to vote by dating, signing and returning the accompanying form of proxy to Odyssey, the transfer agent of the Company. To be valid, completed proxy forms must be dated, completed, signed and deposited with Odyssey by mail to: Odyssey Trust Company, Attention: Proxy Department, 67 Yonge Street, Suite 702, Toronto, Ontario M5E 1J8. You may also vote through the internet by going to *https://odysseytrust.com/login/* and click on VOTE and enter the 12 digit control number found on the form of proxy. Your proxy or voting instructions must be received in each case no later than 10:00 a.m. Toronto time) on June 29, 2021 or two business days preceding the date of any adjournment or postponement. If you are unable to attend the Meeting, we encourage you to complete the enclosed form of proxy as soon as possible. If a Shareholder received more than one form of proxy because such holder owns Shares registered in different names or addresses, each form of proxy should be completed and returned. The Chairman of the Meeting shall have the discretion to waive or extend the proxy deadline without notice.

All Shares represented at the Meeting by properly executed proxies will be voted on any matter that may be called for and, where a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon has been specified in the accompanying form of proxy, the Shares represented by the proxy will be voted in accordance with such instructions. In the absence of any such instructions, the persons whose names appear on the printed form of proxy will vote in favour of all the matters set out thereon.

The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein. If any other business or amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting properly comes before the Meeting, then discretionary authority is conferred upon the person appointed in the proxy to vote in the manner they see fit, in accordance with their best judgment.

At the time of the printing of this Information Circular, the management of the Company knew of no such amendment, variation or other matter to come before the Meeting other than the matters referred to in the Notice of Meeting.

VOTING AT THE MEETING

Registered Shareholders may vote at the Meeting by completing a ballot online during the Meeting, as further described below. See "*How to Attend and Participate in the Meeting*".

Beneficial Shareholders who have not duly appointed themselves as proxyholder will not be able to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting. This is because the Company and Odyssey do not have a record of the Beneficial Shareholders of the Company, and, as a result, will have no knowledge of your shareholdings or entitlement to vote, unless you appoint yourself as proxyholder. If you are a Beneficial Shareholder and wish to vote at the Meeting, you have to appoint yourself as proxyholder, by inserting your own name in the space provided on the voting instruction form sent to you and must follow all of the applicable instructions provided by your Intermediary. See "Appointment of a Third Party as a Proxy" and "How to Attend and Participate in the Meeting".

Appointment of a Third Party as a Proxy

The following applies to Shareholders who wish to appoint a person (a "**Third Party Proxyholder**") other than the management nominees set forth in the form of proxy or voting instruction form as proxyholder, including Beneficial Shareholders who wish to appoint themselves as proxyholder to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting.

Shareholders who wish to appoint a Third Party Proxyholder to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting as their proxy and vote their Shares MUST submit their proxy or voting instruction form (as applicable) appointing such Third Party Proxyholder AND register the Third Party Proxyholder, as described below. Registering your proxyholder is an additional step to be completed AFTER you have submitted your proxy or voting instruction form. Failure to register the proxyholder will result in the proxyholder not receiving a Username to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting.

Step 1 – Submit your proxy or voting instruction form – To appoint a Third Party Proxyholder, insert such person's name in the blank space provided in the form of proxy or voting instruction form (if permitted) and follow the instructions for submitting such form of proxy or voting instruction form. This must be completed prior to registering such proxyholder, which is an additional step to be completed once you have submitted your form of proxy or voting instruction form. If you are a Beneficial Shareholder located in the United States, you must also provide Odyssey with a duly completed legal proxy if you wish to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting or, if permitted, appoint a third party as your proxyholder. See below under this section for additional details.

Step 2 – Register your proxyholder – To register a proxyholder, shareholders MUST send an email to *colcare@odysseytrust.com* by 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on June 30, 2021 and provide Odyssey with the required proxyholder contact information, amount of Shares appointed, name in which the Shares are registered if they are a Registered Shareholder, or name of broker where the shares are held if a Beneficial Shareholder, so that Odyssey may provide the proxyholder with a Username via email. Without a Username, proxyholders will not be able to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting.

If you are a Beneficial Shareholder and wish to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting, you have to insert your own name in the space provided on the voting instruction form sent to you by your Intermediary, follow all of the applicable instructions provided by your Intermediary AND register yourself as your proxyholder, as described above. By doing so, you are instructing your Intermediary to appoint you as proxyholder. It is important that you comply with the signature and return instructions provided by your Intermediary. Please also see further instructions below under the heading "*How to Attend and Participate in the Meeting*".

Legal Proxy – U.S. Beneficial Shareholders

If you are a Beneficial Shareholder located in the United States and wish to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting or, if permitted, appoint a third party as your proxyholder, in addition to the steps described above and below under "*How to Attend and Participate in the Meeting*", you must obtain a valid legal proxy from your Intermediary. Follow the instructions from your Intermediary included with the legal proxy form and the voting information form sent to you, or contact your Intermediary to request a legal proxy form or a legal proxy if you have not received one. After obtaining a valid legal proxy from your Intermediary, you must then submit such legal proxy to Odyssey. Requests for registration from Beneficial Shareholders located in the United States that wish to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting or, if permitted, appoint a third party as their proxyholder must be sent by e-mail to *colcare@odysseytrust.com* and received by 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) on June 30, 2021.

HOW TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING

The Company is holding the Meeting in a virtual only format, which will be conducted via live audio webcast. Shareholders will not be able to attend the Meeting in person. In order to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting (including for voting and asking questions at the Meeting), Shareholders must have a valid Username. Guests are welcome to attend and view the webcast, but will be unable to participate or

vote at the Meeting. To join as a guest please visit the Meeting online at *https://web.lumiagm.com/299018610* and select "Join as a Guest" when prompted.

Registered Shareholders and duly appointed proxyholders will be able to attend, participate and vote at the Meeting online at *https://web.lumiagm.com/299018610*. Such persons may then enter the Meeting by clicking "I have a login" and entering a Username and Password before the start of the Meeting:

Registered Shareholders: The control number located on the form of proxy is the Username. The Password to the Meeting is "columbia2021" (case sensitive). If as a Registered Shareholder you are using your control number to login to the Meeting and you have previously voted, you do not need to vote again when the polls open. By voting at the meeting, you will revoke your previous voting instructions received prior to the voting deadline.

Duly appointed proxyholders: Odyssey will provide the proxyholder with a Username by e-mail after the voting deadline has passed. The Password to the Meeting is "columbia2021" (case sensitive). Only Registered Shareholders and duly appointed proxyholders will be entitled to attend, participate and vote at the Meeting. Beneficial Shareholders who have not duly appointed themselves as proxyholder will be able to attend the meeting as a guest but not be able to participate or vote at the Meeting. Shareholders who wish to appoint a Third Party Proxyholder to represent them at the Meeting, including Beneficial Shareholders who wish to appoint themselves as proxyholder to attend, participate or vote at the Meeting, MUST submit their duly completed proxy or voting instruction form AND register the proxyholder. See "*Appointment of a Third Party as Proxy*".

If you attend the Meeting online, it is important that you are connected to the internet at all times during the Meeting in order to vote when balloting commences. It is your responsibility to ensure connectivity for the duration of the Meeting. You should allow ample time to check into the Meeting online and complete the related procedure.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED ON

Except as disclosed in this Information Circular, management of the Company is not aware of any material interest of any director or executive officer or any associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing in any matter to be acted on at the Meeting.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The board of directors of the Company (the "**Board**") has fixed June 2, 2021 as the record date for notice and for voting at the Meeting (the "**Record Date**"). Shareholders at the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of the Meeting and to vote thereat or at any adjournments or postponements thereof on the basis of one vote for each Common Share held and 100 votes for each Proportionate Voting Share held, except to the extent that: (i) a Registered Shareholder has transferred the ownership of any Shares subsequent to the Record Date; and (ii) the transferee of those Shares produces properly endorsed share certificates, or otherwise establishes that he, she or it owns the Shares and demands, not later than 10 days before the Meeting, that his, her or its name be included on the list of persons entitled to vote at the Meeting, in which case, the transferee shall be entitled to vote such Shares at the Meeting. The transfer books will not be closed. A quorum for the transaction of business at the Meeting is present if Shareholders who, together, hold not fewer than 25% of the votes attaching to the outstanding Shares of the Company entitled to vote at the Meeting are present or represented by proxy.

The authorized capital of the Company consists of (i) an unlimited number of Common Shares; (ii) an unlimited number of Proportionate Voting Shares; and (iii) an unlimited number of Preferred Shares,

issuable in series, none of which are issued and outstanding. As of May 26, 2021, there were 301,333,988 Common Shares issued and outstanding and 153,777.98 Proportionate Voting Shares issued and outstanding. The Shareholders are entitled to one vote per Common Share and 100 votes per Proportionate Voting Share at all meetings of the Shareholders either personally or by proxy. The Shareholders are also entitled to dividends, if and when declared by the directors of the Company, and the distribution of the residual assets of the Company in the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company. Generally, the Common Shares and Proportionate Voting Shares have the same rights, are equal in all respects and are treated by the Company as if they were shares of one class only.

The number of votes represented by fractional Proportionate Voting Shares will be rounded down to the nearest whole number. Unless a different majority is required by law or the constating documents of the Company, resolutions to be approved by holders of Shares require approval by a simple majority of the total number of votes of all Shares cast at the Meeting.

The following table sets out the information regarding ownership of the Shares owned by each person who, to the knowledge of the Company, beneficially owns, controls, or directs, indirectly or directly, more than 10% of the issued and outstanding Shares as of May 26, 2021.

Name	Number of Common Shares ⁽¹⁾	Type of Ownership	Percentage of Issued and Outstanding Common Shares ⁽¹⁾
Nicholas Vita	36,907,860 Common Shares	Direct and Indirect	11.6%
Michael Abbott	36,727,863 Common Shares	Direct and Indirect	11.6%

Notes:

(1) Assuming conversion of all Proportionate Voting Shares into Common Shares

As of May 26, 2021, the directors and executive officers of the Company, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, approximately 27.2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company, assuming conversion of all Proportionate Voting Shares into Common Shares.

Pursuant to the Company's Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "**Omnibus Plan**"), as of May 26, 2021, the directors and executive officers of the Company, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly: 7,387,347 performance share units ("**PSUs**") and 6,460,178 restricted share units ("**RSUs**") to obtain Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Company's Omnibus Plan. If all such PSUs and RSUs were exercised, the directors and executive officers of the Company, as a group, would hold approximately 30.4% of the then issued and outstanding Common Shares (on a fully-diluted basis).

BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE MEETING

The following business will be transacted at the Meeting:

Receive the Financial Statements

The audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2020 and the report of the auditors thereon will be received at the Meeting. The audited financial statements of the Company and the report of the auditors are being provided to each Shareholder entitled to receive a copy of the Notice of Meeting and this Information Circular and who requested a copy of the audited financial statements are also available on SEDAR at *www.sedar.com*.

Election of Directors

The term of office for each director is from the date of the Meeting at which he or she is elected until the next following annual meeting or until his or her successor is elected or appointed. At the Meeting, a board of eight directors will be proposed for election. Management has been informed that each of the proposed nominees listed below is willing to serve as a director if elected.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the nominees, their respective positions with the Company, principal occupations or employment during the last five years, the dates on which they became directors of the Company and the approximate number of Shares beneficially owned by them, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised by them as of May 26, 2021.

Name and Residence	Position held with the Company	Director Since	Principal Occupation for the Previous Five Years	Shares Beneficially Owned Directly or Indirectly or over which Control or Direction is Exercised
Nicholas Vita ⁽³⁾ Connecticut, United States	CEO and Director	April 26, 2019	Chief Executive Officer, Columbia Care Inc.	36,907,860 Common Shares; 0 Proportionate Voting Shares
Michael Abbott ⁽³⁾ New York, United States	Executive Chairman and Director	April 26, 2019	Executive Chairman, Columbia Care Inc.	36,727,863 Common Shares; 0 Proportionate Voting Shares
Frank Savage ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾⁽³⁾ Connecticut, United States	Director	January 31, 2020	Managing Partner of Savage Holdings, LLC	47,753 Common Shares; 0 Proportionate Voting Shares
James A.C. Kennedy ⁽²⁾⁽³⁾ Maryland, United States	Director	April 26, 2019	President and Chief Executive Officer of T. Rowe Price Group	27,076 Common Shares; 20,740 Proportionate Voting Shares
Jonathan P. May ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾ New York, United States	Director	April 26, 2019	Managing Director, Floresta Ventures, LLC	24,000 Common Shares; 29,468 Proportionate Voting Shares
Jeff Clarke ⁽¹⁾⁽³⁾ California, United States	Director	January 31, 2020	Executive Chairman, FTD LLC; Chief Executive Officer, Eastman Kodak Company	565,778 Common Shares; 47.29 Proportionate Voting Shares
Alison Worthington California, United States	Director	November 2, 2020	Principal, Worthington Growth Partners; Chief Marketing Officer, Collective Health	None
Julie Hill California, United States	N/A ⁽⁴⁾	N/A ⁽⁴⁾	Owner, The Hill Company	None

Notes:

(1) Member of the Audit Committee.

(2) Member of the Compensation Committee.

(3) Member of the Nomination and Governance Committee.

(4) Julie Hill shall be appointed to the board of directors effective June 7, 2021.

Biographies

The following are brief profiles of the directors and director nominees of the Company.

Nicholas Vita, Director and Chief Executive Officer

Nicholas Vita co-founded Columbia Care in 2012. Mr. Vita began his career as a strategic advisor at S.G. Warburg and then as a member of the Healthcare Investment Banking Department at Goldman Sachs. Mr. Vita has more than 20 years' experience as an executive and an entrepreneur in finance and healthcare.

Michael Abbott, Director and Executive Chairman

Michael Abbott co-founded Columbia Care in 2012. Mr. Abbott started his financial career at Swiss Bank Corporation/SBC O'Connor and later worked at Goldman Sachs. Mr. Abbott has since launched and run several companies. Prior to his career in finance, Mr. Abbott served on the London Police Force.

Frank Savage, Director

Frank Savage is currently the Managing Partner of Savage Holdings, LLC, a global financial services company and has previously held senior positions at Citibank, Equitable Life Assurance Corp. (now AXA Inc.) and Alliance Capital Management International as its Chairman. He currently serves on the board of directors of Bloomberg L.P., and has served on the boards of a number of corporations and non-profit organizations, including Lockheed Martin, Inc. and Qualcomm Inc. Mr. Savage earned a Bachelor of Arts degree from Howard University, a Master of Arts degree from the Johns Hopkins Nitze School of Advanced International Studies, and was the recipient of an Honorary Doctorate of Humane Letters from Hofstra University and an honorary Doctor of Humanities degree from Howard University. He serves as Chair Emeritus of Howard University and Trustee Emeritus of The Johns Hopkins University.

James A.C. Kennedy, Director

In December 2015, James A.C. Kennedy resigned from his role as President and Chief Executive Officer of T. Rowe Price Group, a global investment management organization, serving institutions and individuals around the world and retired from T. Rowe Price in March 2016. Mr. Kennedy spent 38 years with T. Rowe Price, including nine years as CEO, during which time the firm's assets more than doubled to \$763 billion. Previously Mr. Kennedy served as an investment analyst, as Director of Research, and as Head of Equities at the firm. Mr. Kennedy also served on the Board of T. Rowe Price for 20 years. Prior to earning his MBA at Stanford University, Mr. Kennedy participated in the Financial Management training program at General Electric. Mr. Kennedy currently serves on the board of United Continental.

Jonathan P. May, Director

Jonathan May is currently Co-Founder and Managing Director of Floresta Ventures, LLC. Floresta invests, owns and operates restaurant and retail concepts. He is also a co-founder and managing director of Floresta Partners, LLC, a consulting firm focusing on growing multi-unit restaurant and retail concepts. Prior to forming Floresta, Mr. May was Executive Director of Natural Capital Partners Holdings LLC. NCPH works with corporations to measure their environmental impact and deliver solutions for positive impact on carbon, renewable energy, water, biodiversity and communities.

Previously Mr. May was a founder and Managing Director of Catalytic Capital LLC, a private equity firm focused on growing retail and consumer branded companies. Before co-founding Catalytic Capital, Mr. May was Senior Vice President of Corporate Development for Triarc Companies, Inc. where he was responsible for merger identification and execution, corporate finance, and strategic planning. Mr. May also served as Chief Executive Officer of Arby's, Inc., where he managed the growth of 3,400 restaurants comprising \$2.5 billion of global system-wide sales. Mr. May held a variety of strategic and operating roles at Arby's before becoming CEO. Mr. May also sits on the Board of Trustees of Griffin Industrial Realty, a publicly traded real estate company. Mr. May formerly was a board member of Sneaker Villa and Marketwatch.com.

Jeff Clarke, Director

Mr. Clarke currently serves as Co-CEO of E.Merge Technology Acquisition Corporation (NASDAQ: ETACU), a special purpose acquisition corporation. Mr. Clarke also serves as Chairman of FTD, LLC, leading the restructure of the company following its acquisition by Nexus Capital Management in August 2019. Prior to this, Mr. Clarke spent five years as chief executive officer of Eastman Kodak Company, where he led the restructuring and divestiture of its high multiple packaging print division, substantially reducing Kodak's debt. Mr. Clarke has also held numerous prominent roles within the technology industry, including chief executive officer, chairman and executive chair positions at Travelport Limited, a leading technology and distribution company in the travel industry. He has also served as chief operating officer for CA Software, executive vice president of global operations at Hewlett-Packard and chief financial officer at Compaq Computer. Mr. Clarke is currently a director at Generate Life Sciences and is a former director at Docker, Autodesk, Red Hat, Compuware and UTStarcom. He earned his MBA from Northeastern University and now serves as a Northeastern University Trustee.

Alison Worthington, Director

Alison Worthington is an innovative marketing leader with nearly three decades of experience transforming brands, product portfolios and P&Ls to deliver growth and ROI. Ms. Worthington held multiple senior level operating roles for The Coca-Cola Company, Starbucks and Microsoft as well as serving as the global Chief Marketing Officer for Method Home Products and a senior consultant at L.E.K. Consulting. She currently leads a marketing consulting practice, where she engages as an interim Chief Marketing Officer and on demand advisor to high growth tech, consumer, life science, retail and e-commerce companies looking to reposition and scale their brands and products with new customer experiences and channels. She leverages her background in building experiential lifestyle brands through compelling communication, disruptive product innovation, digital transformation and omnichannel marketing to put businesses on a path of purposeful growth and competitive differentiation. She has been fortunate to work with great companies like GoPro, Ancestry, Bragg Live Foods and multiple startups. Ms. Worthington also serves on the board of directors for Generate, a privately held life sciences company helping to grow and protect families through newborn stem cell, reproductive and healthcare technology services. Ms. Worthington earned an MBA from the Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration and an AB in Economics from Smith College.

Julie Hill, Director

Julie Hill has spent more than two decades serving on a range of private and public corporate boards of directors. Most recently, Ms. Hill was a member of the board of directors of Anthem, a Fortune 50 company and the largest U.S. health insurance company by member. She is currently a member of the board of trustees of Lord Abbett, a \$225 billion New Jersey-based mutual fund management firm. She was also previously on the board of Lend Lease, based in Sydney, Australia, a \$9 billion international construction, development, investment and management firm, publicly traded on the Australian exchange, and Holcim

(U.S.), the U.S. operation of a Swiss company, as well as several other public corporate boards. Prior to her last 20 years serving on boards of directors, she founded and ran multiple companies, mostly in the real estate investment and development industry, and was a senior executive at numerous publicly traded companies, including Mobil Land, a division of Mobil Oil, and UK-based Costain Group. Ms. Hill is currently Chair of the Board of Trustees of the University of California at Irvine (UCI), and is a board member of Leaders' Quest, and the Alliance for SoCal Innovation. She is a member of the International Women's Forum and Los Angeles Trusteeship, and is a prior member of the Women's Leadership Board of the Kennedy School of Government at Harvard. She earned a bachelor of arts degree in English from UCLA, and a master's degree in marketing from the University of Georgia.

Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Company, no director, proposed director or executive officer of the Company has been, at the date hereof or within the last 10 years: (a) a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company that, while that person was acting in that capacity, (i) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the company access to any exemption under securities legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, or (ii) was the subject of an event that resulted, after that person ceased to be a director or chief executive officer or chief financial officer, in the company being the subject of such an order; or (b) a director or executive of a company that, while that person was acting in that capacity or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.

Personal Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Company, no director, proposed director or executive officer of the Company has, within the 10 years before the date hereof, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director or executive officer.

Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Company, no director, proposed director or executive officer of the Company has been subject to (a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority; or (b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable securityholder in making an investment decision.

Majority Voting Policy

The Company has in place a majority voting policy consistent with the Neo Exchange Inc. (the "**NEO Exchange**") requirements.

In an uncontested election of directors of the Company, each director should be elected by the vote of a majority of the shares represented in person or by proxy at the shareholders meeting convened for such election of directors. Accordingly, if any nominee for the Board receives a greater number of votes "withheld" from his or her election than votes "for" such election, that director shall promptly tender his or her resignation to the chair of the Board following the meeting of shareholders at which the director was elected.

The Company's Nomination and Governance Committee shall consider any such offer of resignation and recommend to the Board whether or not to accept it. Any director who has tendered his or her resignation shall not participate in the deliberations of either the Nomination and Governance Committee or the Board at which his or her resignation is considered. In its deliberations, the Nomination and Governance Committee may consider any stated reasons as to why shareholders "withheld" votes from the election of the relevant director, the effect such resignation may have on the Company's ability to comply with applicable corporate or securities law requirements, applicable regulations or commercial agreements regarding the composition, the dynamics of the Board, and any other factors that the members of the Nomination and Governance Committee consider relevant.

The Board must promptly accept the resignation unless it determines, in consultation with the Nomination and Governance Committee, that there are exceptional circumstances that should delay the acceptance of the resignation or justify rejecting it. The Board shall, after considering the factors identified by the Nomination and Governance Committee and any other factors that the Board considers relevant, make its decision and announce such decision through a press release within 90 days following the applicable shareholders meeting. A copy of the press release shall be concurrently delivered to the NEO Exchange. If the Board declines to accept the resignation, it should fully state the reasons for its decision in the press release. The resignation of a director will be effective when accepted by the Board.

A copy of the Company's majority voting policy can be found on the Company's website at *www.col-care.com*.

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy, if not expressly directed to the contrary in such form of proxy, to vote such proxies "**FOR**" the election of each of the nominees specified above as directors of the Company. If, prior to the Meeting, any vacancies occur in the proposed nominees herein submitted, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote FOR the election of any substitute nominee or nominees recommended by management of the Company and FOR each of the remaining proposed nominees.

Appointment of Auditors

Davidson & Company LLP is the auditor of the Company. At the Meeting, Shareholders will be requested to re-appoint Davidson & Company LLP as auditor of the Company to hold office until the next annual meeting of Shareholders or until a successor is appointed, and to authorize the directors to fix the auditors' remuneration.

Absent contrary instructions, proxies given pursuant to this solicitation by the management of the Company will be voted "**FOR**" the appointment of Davidson & Company LLP as the auditor of the Company to hold office until the next annual meeting of Shareholders or until a successor is appointed and the authorization of the directors to fix the remuneration of the auditor.

Amendments to Omnibus Plan

At the Meeting, Shareholders will be asked to consider, and, if thought advisable, approve the Company's Omnibus Plan. A copy of the resolution approving the Omnibus Plan is set out in Schedule "B" of this Circular. Approval of this resolution will require that it be passed by a majority of the votes cast by Shareholders online or by proxy.

As of May 26, 2021, the Company had 10,838,988 Awards (as defined below) outstanding under the Omnibus Plan (55,384 Options, 7,852,621 RSUs, and 2,930,983 PSUs (as each term is defined below)). These outstanding Awards entitle the holders of such Awards to acquire up to 10,838,988 Common Shares

(representing approximately 3.4% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares). If approved, the Omnibus Plan will have 35,000,000 Common Shares available for future grants (representing approximately 11.1% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares), based on the number of currently issued and outstanding Common Shares.

The Omnibus Plan was first approved by the Company's Shareholders on April 26, 2019. The Company is seeking Shareholder approval for the proposed amendments to the Omnibus Plan in accordance with the provisions of the Omnibus Plan and NEO rules.

At the Meeting, the Company is proposing the following two amendments to the Omnibus Plan:

- 1. to increase the authorized number of Common Shares that are issuable under the Omnibus Plan from 10% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Corporation from time to time to a fixed total of 35,000,000 Common Shares; and
- 2. to limit the share-based compensation available under the Omnibus Plan and all other cash compensation paid by the Company to any non-employee director to a maximum of \$600,000 in any one year (excluding any incremental fees paid to such non-employee director for service as Lead Independent Director or Non-Executive Chair (if applicable)) (for purposes of limitation, value of any Award shall be its grant date fair value, as determined by the methodology consistent with that used in determining the non-employee director compensation in the Information Circular).

A complete copy of the Omnibus Plan reflecting these amendments is set out in Schedule "C" of this Circular.

NEO rules require that security-based compensation arrangements which have unallocated awards and no fixed aggregate maximum number of securities issuable be approved every three years. If approval is obtained at the Meeting, the Omnibus Plan will have a fixed aggregate maximum number of securities issuable, and the Company will no longer be required to seek further approval of the grant of unallocated Awards under the Omnibus Plan. Previously allocated Awards will continue to be unaffected by the approval or disapproval of the resolution related to the Omnibus Plan.

The Omnibus Plan allows for a variety of equity-based awards that provide different types of incentives to be granted to certain executive officers, directors, employees and consultants ("**Participants**"), including options to purchase Common Shares ("**Options**"), performance share units ("**PSUs**"), restricted share units ("**RSUs**"), deferred share units ("**DSUs**") and stock appreciation rights ("**SARs**"), which are collectively referred to herein as "**Awards**".

For further discussion of the Awards under the Omnibus Plan, please see under the heading "Security Based Compensation Plans – Summary of the Omnibus Plan"

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy, if not expressly directed to the contrary in the proxy, to vote **"FOR"** the ordinary resolution authorizing the approval of the Omnibus Plan.

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The purpose of this Statement of Executive Compensation is to provide information about the Company's philosophy, objectives and processes regarding executive compensation. This disclosure is intended to communicate the compensation provided to each of the Chief Executive Officer ("**CEO**"), the Chief Financial Officer ("**CFO**"), and the three next most highly compensated executive officers of the Company, if any, whose individual total compensation was more than \$150,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020

(collectively, the "**Named Executive Officers**" or "**NEOs**"), and the directors of the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Named Executive Officers of the Company were Nicholas Vita, Michael Abbott, Lars Boesgaard, David Hart, and Jesse Channon.

2020 Performance Highlights

In 2020, in spite of the headwinds created by the COVID-19 global pandemic, the Company was able to achieve record operational performance, while also continuing to pursue and execute on strategic initiatives, specifically:

- i. delivered combined revenue of \$197.9 million, an increase of 151% from the prior year; combined gross profit of \$76.1 million (excludes changes in fair value of biological assets and inventory sold), an increase of 260% over the prior year; and became adjusted EBITDA positive starting in Q3 of 2020 (excludes changes in fair value of biological assets sold, share based compensation expense, and other non-recurring items deemed unrelated to current operations);
- ii. ended the year with \$61M cash;
- iii. added 39 dispensaries to the Company's footprint;
- iv. made significant progress on many key M&A initiatives, including but not limited to completing the acquisition of The Green Leaf Solutions and Project Cannabis, entering into agreements to acquire Green Leaf Medical and The Healing Center San Diego (acquisition has since been completed in 2021), and continuing to identify and pursue other M&A opportunities that align with the Company's business strategy; and
- v. successfully transitioned certain jobs to remote-work with limited disruptions to the Company's customers and business, as well as successfully implemented safety measures at all facilities, allowing the Company to continue operations during the global pandemic, while also providing a safe environment for the Company's employees and customers.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

The Company operates in a dynamic and rapidly evolving market. To succeed in this environment and to achieve business and financial objectives, the Company needs to attract, retain and motivate a highly talented team of executive officers. The Company expects the team of executive officers to possess and demonstrate strong leadership and management capabilities, as well as foster the Company's entrepreneurial, patient-centric, and results-driven culture, which is at the foundation of the Company's success and remains a pivotal part of the Company's everyday operations.

The Company's executive officer compensation program is designed to achieve the following objectives:

- provide market competitive compensation opportunities in order to attract and retain talented, high performing and experienced executive officers, whose knowledge, skills and performance are critical to the Company's success;
- incentivize the Company's executive officers to achieve the Company's business and financial objectives;
- align the interests of the Company's executive officers with those of the Company's shareholders; and

balance achieving short-term results and creating long-term sustainable value to shareholders by • providing incentives that encourage the Company's executive officers to take appropriate levels of risk and that enforce a strong pay for performance relationship.

Benchmarking

As previously noted, a key component of the Company's compensation philosophy is to provide market competitive compensation opportunities in order to attract and retain talented, high performing and experienced executive officers, whose knowledge, skills and performance are critical to the Company's success. The Company's comparator group consists of a combination of companies in the Cannabis industry and high-growth companies in the broad market that are around a relevant size to Columbia Care. For 2020 compensation benchmarking purposes, in consultation with ClearBridge Compensation Group, LLC ("ClearBridge"), an independent compensation consulting group, the decision was made to split the comparator group into two separate groups, specifically:

- i. Cannabis Comparator Group: Consists of 15 North American cannabis companies that met certain size criteria to provide insight into how competitors set and design compensation, and
- Broad Market Competitor Group: Consists of 18 North American high-growth companies (as ii. defined by revenue growth), intended to supplement the Cannabis Comparator Group, to provide insight into how similarly-sized companies in other non-cannabis, high-growth industries set and design compensation.

	2020 Cannabis Comparator Group					
Aurora Cannabis Inc.	Curaleaf Holdings, Inc.	iAnthus Capital Holdings, Inc.	TerrAscend Corp.			
Charlotte's Web Holdings, Inc.	Green Thumb Industries Inc.	MedMen Enterprises Inc.	Tilray, Inc.			
Cresco Labs Inc.	Harvest Health & Recreation Inc.	Organigram Holdings Inc.	Trulieve Cannabis Corp.			
Cronos Group Inc.	HEXO Corp.	Sundial Growers Inc.				

- - ~

2020 Broad Market Comparator Group

Adamas Pharmaceuticals, Inc.	Flexion Therapeutics, Inc.	OptiNose, Inc.	Theravance Biopharma, Inc.
Cardlytics, Inc.	Invitae Corporation	Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc.	Twist Bioscience Corporation
CareDx, Inc	Inspire Medical Systems, Inc.	Radius Health, Inc.	Ultragenyx Pharmaceutical Inc.
Casa Systems, Inc.	iRhythm Technologies, Inc.	REGENXBIO Inc.	
Coherus BioSciences, Inc.	NewAge, Inc.	The Joint Corp.	

Note: As part of the 2020 comparator group review, Alteryx Inc., AppFolio Inc., Everbridge Inc., Glaukos Corporation, New Relic Inc., Penumbra Inc., Reata Pharmaceuticals Inc., Teladoc Health Inc., and Yext Inc. were removed from the comparator group given they no longer meet the required size criteria.

When setting target pay levels, the Compensation Committee uses compensation data from the comparator groups as one of many considerations. The Compensation Committee does not target any specific market positioning but rather references the 50th percentile, recognizing that the specific positioning for each NEO varies based on multiple factors such as individual performance, job responsibilities, and historical compensation levels.

Elements of Executive Compensation

The compensation of executives of the Company includes three main elements: (i) base salary; (ii) an annual bonus; and (iii) long-term equity incentives. Perquisites and personal benefits are not a significant element of compensation for the Company's executive officers.

Base Salaries

Base salary is provided as a fixed source of compensation for the Company's executive officers. Adjustments to base salaries are reviewed annually and as warranted throughout the year to reflect promotions or other changes in the scope of an executive officer's role or responsibilities, as well as to maintain market competitiveness.

Annual Bonuses

Annual bonuses are designed to motivate the Company's executive officers to meet annual business and financial objectives. The annual bonus plan supports the Company's strategic and financial goals and considers performance versus key performance indicators as a factor in determining bonus payments to the Company's executive officers. The Compensation Committee, after considering all relevant Company and individual performance factors, determines annual bonus payouts for the CEO and Executive Chairperson in their discretion. The Compensation Committee oversees the bonus determination process for the other NEOs.

Specifically, in 2020, the Compensation Committee considered and assessed the Company's financial performance (e.g., revenue, margin, cash flow, and balance sheet achievement versus budget), operational performance (e.g., operating results improvement, licenses awarded, build out of operations facilities, quality control, and regulatory compliance), and individual performance versus pre-established KPIs. Given the Company's record performance in 2020 as noted under the heading "2020 Performance Highlights" above, especially considering the challenges created by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the bonuses were made with an average payout of 162% of target for the NEOs.

Long-Term Incentives

Long-term incentive ("LTI") compensation awards provide continual motivation for the Company's officers, employees and consultants to achieve business and financial objectives and align their interests with the long-term interests of the Company's shareholders. The purpose of the LTI program is to promote alignment of interests between employees and shareholders, and to support the achievement of the Company's longer-term performance objectives, while also promoting long-term retention.

As a result, the annual LTI program consists of 35% PSUs and 65% time-vested RSUs for the NEOs in order to incentivize performance, provide alignment with shareholders and meet the Company's retention needs. The RSU grant is earned based on employee service, vesting 25% per year over a four-year period.

The 2020 PSU grant was tied to fiscal year 2020 financial and strategic performance goals, with two years of additional vesting, resulting in a three-year cliff vesting grant. Goals were set based on one year of performance (fiscal year 2020) recognizing the Company's business stage and the challenges with setting multi-year goals given the quickly evolving nature of the cannabis industry. Specifically, the PSUs were tied to Company revenue, gross profit margin (excludes changes in fair value of biological assets and inventory sold), and adjusted EBITDA (excludes changes in fair value of biological assets sold, share based compensation expense, and other non-recurring items deemed unrelated to current operations). PSU payouts can range from 0% of target to 150% of target for achieving maximum performance, with a payout

of 50% of target for achieving the threshold performance level. There are no payouts for below threshold performance. On an as needed basis, in their discretion, the Compensation Committee has a discretionary modifier of up to +/-20 percentage points when determining performance-based vesting, capped at the maximum payout of 150% of target.

Based on the Company's achievement against the 2020 operational metrics, the PSUs were calculated to pay out at 135.75% of target. Given the Company's record performance in 2020 as noted under the heading "2020 Performance Highlights" above, especially considering the challenges created by the COVID-19 global pandemic in achieving that performance, the Compensation Committee applied its discretionary modifier per the plan design to approve a payout of 150% of target for the PSUs. Earned PSUs will be vested and settled in 2023.

2020 Annual Total Target Compensation

As of fiscal year end 2020, the Company's NEO's annual target compensation levels were as follows:

Name and Principal Position	Base Salary (\$)	Target Bonus (% of Base)	Total Cash Compensation (\$)	Long-term Incentives (\$)	Target Total Direct Compensation (\$)
Nicholas Vita CEO and Director	\$420,000	75%	\$735,000	\$2,450,000	\$3,185,000
Michael Abbott Executive Chairman and Director	\$400,000	50%	\$600,000	\$1,750,000	\$2,350,000
Lars Boesgaard CFO	\$283,000	40%	\$396,200	\$600,000	\$996,200
David Hart COO	\$310,000	40%	\$434,000	\$1,200,000	\$1,634,000
Jesse Channon Chief Growth Officer	\$300,000	40%	\$420,000	\$600,000	\$1,020,000

2020 Sign-on Equity Grant to Jesse Channon

Effective November 26, 2019, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Jesse Channon to serve as the Company's Chief Growth Officer. In March 2020, in connection with Mr. Channon's employment agreement, the Company granted him a sign-on grant of \$1,000,000 in RSUs that vests 25% per year over a four-year period (i.e., same vesting as annual RSU grants made to NEOs as part of the annual LTI program) and \$500,000 in PSUs (at target) with 50% of the performance criteria tied to Company revenue goals for fiscal year 2020 and 50% tied to Company revenue goals for fiscal year 2021.

50% of the PSUs earned in each respective year vest at certification of performance, and the other 50% of earned PSUs in each respective year cliff vest at the end of fiscal year 2022. PSU payouts can range from 50% of target for achieving threshold performance to 200% of target for achieving maximum performance. There are no payouts for below threshold performance.

Given the Company's revenue performance in 2020, the payout for the portion of Mr. Channon's PSUs that are earned based on 2020 revenue performance was calculated at 135.19% of target PSUs. 50% of these earned PSUs vested at certification of performance and the other 50% will vest at the end of 2022.

Risks Analysis

The Compensation Committee considered risks associated with executive compensation and does not believe that the Company's executive compensation policies and practices encourage its executive officers to take inappropriate or excessive risks. The following compensation program attributes help mitigate risk: (i) aside from a fixed base salary and "at risk" annual bonus, NEOs are compensated through the granting of PSUs and RSUs, which is compensation that is both "at risk" and associated with long-term value creation; (ii) the value of such compensation is dependent upon shareholder return over the PSU and RSU vesting periods; (iii) the compensation program utilizes multiple performance measures; (iv) the Compensation Committee applies judgement when determining individual payouts; and (v) individual payout caps are applicable, all of which leads to the Compensation Committee believing that the Company's compensation programs and policies are not likely to lead to excessive risk taking that could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Compensation Governance

The Company's Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's compensation policies, processes and practices. The Compensation Committee is also responsible for evaluating performance in determining the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Chairman, and seeks input from the Board to ensure feedback is thorough and robust. The Compensation Committee also ensures that compensation policies and practices provide an appropriate balance of risk and reward consistent with the Company's risk profile. The Board has established a written charter for the Compensation Committee setting out its responsibilities for administering the Company's compensation programs and reviewing and making recommendations to the Board concerning the level and nature of the compensation payable to the Company's directors and executive officers.

The members of the Compensation Committee are James A.C. Kennedy, Jonathan P. May and Frank Savage. The Compensation Committee is chaired by Mr. Kennedy, former President and Chief Executive Officer of global investment management firm T. Rowe Price Group. Mr. Kennedy brings valuable knowledge and expertise to the Compensation Committee, and his experience includes serving as the Compensation Committee chair of United Airlines Holdings, Inc. All of the members of the Compensation Committee are independent directors in that they do not have a direct or indirect material relationship with the Company which could, in the view of the Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise of the director's independent judgment. The independence of ClearBridge is assessed by the Compensation Committee on an annual basis to ensure continued independence. The Compensation Committee also evaluates its own performance on an annual basis. A copy of the Compensation Committee Charter can be found on the Company's website at *www.col-care.com*.

The Compensation Committee is tasked with establishing an executive compensation program, which includes any share-based awards, option-based awards or the establishment of any non-equity incentive plans. The terms of any proposed compensation for the directors of the Company who are not also officers of the Company (including any share-based awards or options to be granted) are determined by the Compensation Committee.

To assist in reviewing and determining executive compensation, beginning in October 2018 and throughout 2020, the Compensation Committee retained ClearBridge to provide services to the Compensation

Committee in connection with executive officer and director compensation matters, including, among other things, the following:

- assist in reviewing the Compensation Committee Charter and processes;
- assist in reviewing the Company's compensation philosophy;
- assist in updating/developing the comparator groups;
- assist in reviewing the competitiveness of the Company's recommended 2020 cash and equitybased compensation arrangements for NEOs and other key executives;
- assist in designing the 2020 LTI program; and
- assist in reviewing the director compensation program.

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed by ClearBridge for its services related to determining compensation for the Company's executive officers for the most recently completed financial year of the Company:

	Year Ended December 31, 2020
Executive Compensation-Related Fees	\$512,253
All Other Fees	Nil

All services provided by ClearBridge to the Company are pre-approved by the Compensation Committee.

Insider Trading Policy

All of the Company's directors, executives and certain other employees are subject to the Company's Insider Trading Policy, which prohibits trading in the Company's securities while in possession of material undisclosed information about the Company. Under this policy, such individuals are also prohibited from disclosing inside information pursuant to the Insider Trading Policy. Furthermore, such individuals, including the NEOs are only permitted to trade in the Company's securities during prescribed trading windows.

Restrictions on Hedging

Under the Company's Insider Trading Policy, directors, executives and certain other employees are prohibited from entering into hedging transactions involving the Company's securities, such as short sales, puts and calls.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensation earned by, paid to or awarded to the Company's Named Executive Officers for the Company's financial year ending December 31, 2020.

			~		Plan Com	y Incentive pensation \$)			
Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Share- Based Awards ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾ (3) (\$)	Option- Based Awards (\$)	Annual Incentive Plans	Long- term Incentive Plans	Pension Value ⁽⁴⁾ (\$)	All Other Compensation ⁽⁵⁾ (\$)	Total Compensation (\$)
Nicholas Vita	2020	\$416,339	\$2,722,138	\$0	\$550,000	\$0	\$0	\$19,979	\$3,708,456
CEO and Director	2019	\$400,000	\$19,008,876	\$0	\$225,000	\$0	\$0	\$27,959	\$19,661,835
Michael Abbott	2020	\$400,000	\$1,944,386	\$0	\$350,000	\$0	\$0	\$43,229	\$2,737,614
Executive Chairman and Director	2019	\$400,000	\$18,683,588	\$0	\$120,000	\$0	\$0	\$21,428	\$19,225,016
Lars Boesgaard	2020	\$281,536	\$666,649	\$0	\$180,000	\$0	\$0	\$1,072	\$1,129,256
CFO	2019	\$273,940	\$2,936,950	\$0	\$142,500	\$0	\$0	\$1,072	\$ 3,354,463
David Hart	2020	\$308,169	\$1,333,295	\$0	\$190,000	\$0	\$0	\$1,072	\$1,832,537
COO	2019	\$297,476	\$6,859,594	\$0	\$90,000	\$0	\$0	\$1,162	\$7,248,232
Jesse Channon ⁽⁶⁾	2020	\$295,423	\$2,324,358	\$0	\$180,000	\$0	\$0	\$1,072	\$2,800,854
Chief Growth Officer	2019	\$7,404	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$89	\$7,493

Notes:

 2020 share-based award values converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD; 2019 share-based award values converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.768233.

- (2) For 2020, reflects (i) annual share-based awards, specifically 894,663 RSUs and 481,742 PSUs granted to Mr. Vita, 639,045 RSUs and 344,102 PSUs granted to Mr. Abbott, 219,102 RSUs and 117,978 PSUs granted to Mr. Boesgaard, 438,203 RSUs and 235,956 PSUs granted to Mr. Hart, and 219,102 RSUs and 117,978 PSUs granted to Mr. Channon, and (ii) sign-on award of 680,273 RSUs and 340,137 PSUs to Mr. Channon. PSU amounts are disclosed at target.
- (3) For 2019, reflects (i) annual share-based awards, specifically 263,514 RSUs and 141,892 PSUs granted to Mr. Vita, 204,955 RSUs and 110,361 PSUs granted to Mr. Abbott, 70,271 RSUs and 37,838 PSUs granted to Mr. Boesgaard, and 117,118 RSUs and 63,064 PSUs granted to Mr. Hart, and (ii) Post-Closing RSU Grants, specifically 870,691 time-vested RSUs and 1,741,382 performance-vested RSUs granted to Messrs. Vita and Abbott, 174,139 time-vested RSUs and 174,139 performance-vested RSUs granted to Mr. Boesgaard, and 435,346 time-vested RSUs and 435,346 performance-vested RSUs granted to Mr. Hart, and (iii) special one-time RSU award of 12,423 time-vested RSUs to Mr. Boesgaard. PSU amounts are disclosed at target.
- (4) Columbia Care Inc. did not have a defined benefits plan or defined contributions plan during FY2020.
- (5) Reflects (i) reimbursements for the cost of life insurance, specifically \$1,346 for Mr. Vita, \$13,482 for Mr. Abbott, and \$1,072 each for Messrs. Boesgaard, Hart, and Channon, and (ii) reimbursements for tax planning services, specifically \$18,633 for Mr. Vita and \$29,746 for Mr. Abbott.
- (6) Mr. Channon was appointed Chief Growth Officer effective November 26, 2019.

Incentive Plan Awards – Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information concerning the option-based and share-based awards granted to the Company's Named Executive Officers that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020.

	Option-based Awards			Share-based Awards			
Name and Principal Position	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#)	Option Exercise Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date	Value of Unexercised In-the- Money Options (\$)	Number of Shares or Units of Shares That Have Not Vested (#)	Market or Payout Value of Share- Based Awards That Have Not Vested (\$) ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	Market Or Payout Value of Vested Share- Based Awards Not Paid Out or Distributed (\$) ⁽¹⁾⁽³⁾
Nicholas Vita CEO and Director	-	\$0	-	\$0	4,071,526	\$24,732,134	\$0
Michael Abbott Executive Chairman and Director	-	\$0	-	\$0	3,547,777	\$21,550,666	\$0
Lars Boesgaard CFO	-	\$0	-	\$0	812,215	\$4,933,730	\$340,349
David Hart COO	-	\$0	-	\$0	2,054,063	\$12,477,229	\$2,590,088
Jesse Channon Chief Growth Officer	-	\$0	-	\$0	1,476,326	\$8,967,816	\$0

Notes:

(1) Market value of unvested share-based awards and vested but undistributed share-based awards calculated based on the closing share price on December 31, 2020 (converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD).

(2) For outstanding PSUs whose performance has been certified, reflects number of shares eligible to vest; for outstanding PSUs whose performance has not yet been certified, reflects target number of shares.

(3) Reflects market value of vested deferred compensation granted under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan and converted into deferred RSUs in connection with the completion of the qualifying transaction between the Company, under the name "Canaccord Genuity Growth Corp.," and Columbia Care LLC in 2019 (the "Business Combination"); Columbia Care Inc.'s Board of Directors approved termination of the Income Incentive Plan (i.e., the deferred compensation plan under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan), effective April 1, 2020, and all outstanding deferred compensation will subsequently be paid out between 12 and 24 months following plan termination per 409A of the IRS code.

Incentive Plan Awards - Value Vested or Earned During the Year

The following table indicates, for each of the Company's NEOs, a summary of the value of the option-based and share-base awards vested in accordance with their terms for the Company's financial year ending December 31, 2020.

Name and Principal Position	Option-Based Awards – Value Vested During the Year (\$)	Share-Based Awards – Value Vested During the Year (\$) ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation - Value Earned During the Year (\$) ⁽³⁾
Nicholas Vita CEO and Director	\$0	\$967,003	\$550,000
Michael Abbott Executive Chairman and Director	\$0	\$938,508	\$350,000
Lars Boesgaard CFO	\$0	\$366,448	\$180,000
David Hart COO	\$0	\$1,094,847	\$190,000
Jesse Channon Chief Growth Officer	\$0	\$0	\$180,000

Notes:

- (1) Value of vested share-based awards calculated based on the closing share price on the date of vesting (converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD); if share-based awards vested in FY2020 but not on a trading day, value of vested share-based awards calculated based on closing share price on the last trading day prior to the date of vesting.
- (2) Includes vested deferred compensation granted under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan and converted into deferred RSUs in connection with the Business Combination valued at \$113,890 for Mr. Boesgaard, and \$377,038 for Mr. Hart. Columbia Care Inc.'s Board of Directors approved termination of the Income Incentive Plan (i.e., the deferred compensation plan under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan), effective April 1, 2020, and all outstanding deferred compensation will subsequently be paid out between 12 and 24 months following plan termination per 409A of the IRS code.
- (3) Reflects annual bonuses earned in 2020 and scheduled to be paid out in 2021.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company's Board of Directors approved termination of the Income Incentive Plan (i.e., the deferred compensation plan under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan), effective April 1, 2020, and all outstanding deferred compensation will subsequently be paid out in shares of the Company between 12 and 24 months following plan termination per 409A of the IRS code. The Company has no other deferred compensation plans.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Other than as described herein, the Company does not have any contract, agreement, plan or arrangement that provides for payments to a NEO at, following, or in connection with a termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or constructive), resignation, retirement, a change of control of the Company or a change in a NEO's responsibilities. Note that the dollar value of potential accelerated equity in connection with a qualifying termination reflects an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD.

Nicholas Vita

On April 26, 2019, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Vita (the "Vita Agreement"). In the event of termination without cause of Mr. Vita's employment or if Mr. Vita resigns for good reason in connection with a change of control, Mr. Vita shall receive (i) an amount equal to thirtysix (36) months of the sum of Mr. Vita's then base salary and target bonus paid over such 36-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Vita's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Vita's health insurance coverage for thirty-six (36) months beyond the termination date; and (iii) Mr. Vita shall receive outplacement services for a period of one (1) year following the termination date. The change of control payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Vita are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Vita signing and not rescinding the Vita Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon a qualifying termination in connection with a change of control, Mr. Vita's outstanding time-vested RSUs, including the time-vested portion of his outstanding Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest in full and his outstanding performance-vested RSUs/PSUs, including his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the consummation of the change of control. The total estimated incremental payments, payables and benefits to Mr. Vita in the event his employment is terminated in connection with a change of control, as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$16,405,860, with Mr. Vita's health insurance coverage continuing for thirty-six (36) months from the termination date.

In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Vita's employment without cause or Mr. Vita resigns for good reason, Mr. Vita shall receive (i) an amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of the sum of Mr. Vita's then base salary and target bonus paid over such 24-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Vita's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Vita's health insurance coverage for twenty-four (24) months beyond the termination date; and (iii) Mr. Vita shall receive outplacement services for a period of one (1) year following the termination date. The payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Vita are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Vita signing and not rescinding the Vita Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon an involuntary termination without cause or a termination for good reason, Mr. Vita's outstanding time-vested RSUs and performance-vested RSUs/PSUs will be forfeited. As an exception, Mr. Vita's outstanding time-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant will vest in full and his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the full performance period, pro-rated for months served. The total estimated incremental payments and payables to Mr. Vita in the event of termination of his employment without cause (other than due to a change of control), as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$4,145,539, with Mr. Vita's health insurance coverage continuing for twenty-four (24) months from the termination date.

Michael Abbott

On April 26, 2019, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Abbott (the "**Abbott Agreement**"). In the event of termination without cause of Mr. Abbott's employment or if Mr. Abbott resigns for good reason in connection with a change of control, Mr. Abbott shall receive (i) an amount equal to thirty-six (36) months of the sum of Mr. Abbott's then base salary and target bonus paid over such 36-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Abbott's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Abbott's health insurance coverage for thirty-six (36) months beyond the termination date; and (iii) Mr. Abbott shall receive outplacement services for a period of one (1) year following the termination date. The change of control

payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Abbott are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Abbott signing and not rescinding the Abbott Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon a qualifying termination in connection with a change of control, Mr. Abbott's outstanding time-vested RSUs, including the time-vested portion of his outstanding Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest in full and his outstanding performance-vested RSUs/PSUs, including his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the consummation of the change of control. The total estimated incremental payments, payables and benefits to Mr. Abbott in the event his employment is terminated in connection with a change of control, as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$12,819,391, with Mr. Abbott's health insurance coverage continuing for thirty-six (36) months from the termination date.

In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Abbott's employment without cause or Mr. Abbott resigns for good reason, Mr. Abbott shall receive (i) an amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of the sum of Mr. Abbott's then base salary and target bonus paid over such 24-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Abbott's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Abbott's health insurance coverage for twenty-four (24) months beyond the termination date; and (iii) Mr. Abbott shall receive outplacement services for a period of one (1) year following the termination date. The severance payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Abbott are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Abbott signing and not rescinding the Abbott Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon an involuntary termination without cause or a termination for good reason, Mr. Abbott's outstanding time-vested RSUs and performance-vested RSUs/PSUs will be forfeited. As an exception, Mr. Abbott's outstanding time-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant will vest in full and his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the full performance period, pro-rated for months served. The total estimated incremental payments and payables to Mr. Abbott in the event of termination of his employment without cause (other than due to a change of control), as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$3,875,539, with Mr. Abbott's health insurance coverage continuing for twenty-four (24) months from the termination date.

Lars Boesgaard

On April 26, 2019, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Boesgaard (the "Boesgaard Agreement"). The Boesgaard Agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr. Boesgaard or the Company. In the event of termination without cause of Mr. Boesgaard's employment in connection with a change of control, Mr. Boesgaard shall receive (i) an amount equal to eighteen (18) months of Mr. Boesgaard's then base salary paid over such 18-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; and (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Boesgaard's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Boesgaard's health insurance coverage for eighteen (18) months beyond the termination date. The change of control payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Boesgaard are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Boesgaard signing and not rescinding the Boesgaard Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon a qualifying termination in connection with a change of control, Mr. Boesgaard's outstanding time-vested RSUs, including the timevested portion of his outstanding Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest in full and his outstanding performance-vested RSUs/PSUs, including his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the consummation of the change of control. Under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan, upon a change of control,

outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock units that were converted from Capital Accumulation Incentive Plan Units and Income Incentive Plan Units, respectively, will fully vest (though administrator of plan may determine to require the earlier of a period of up to one year of continued employment post change of control or termination of employment). The total estimated incremental payments, payables and benefits to Mr. Boesgaard in the event his employment is terminated in connection with a change of control, as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$4,493,500, with Mr. Boesgaard's health insurance coverage continuing for eighteen (18) months from the termination date.

In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Boesgaard's employment without cause, Mr. Boesgaard shall receive (i) an amount equal to twelve (12) months of Mr. Boesgaard's then base salary paid over such 12month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; and the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Boesgaard's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Boesgaard's health insurance coverage for twelve (12) months beyond the termination date. The severance payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Boesgaard are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Boesgaard signing and not rescinding the Boesgaard Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon an involuntary termination without cause, Mr. Boesgaard's outstanding timevested RSUs and performance-vested RSUs will be forfeited. As an exception, the portion of Mr. Boesgaard's outstanding time-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant that is scheduled to vest within the following twelve months will vest and his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the full performance period, pro-rated for months served. Under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan, upon an involuntary termination without cause, outstanding restricted stock and RSUs that were converted from Capital Accumulation Incentive Plan Units and Income Incentive Plan Units, respectively, will be forfeited. The total estimated incremental payments and payables to Mr. Boesgaard in the event of termination of his employment without cause (other than due to a change of control), as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$676,158, with Mr. Boesgaard's health insurance coverage continuing for twelve (12) months from the termination date.

David Hart

On April 26, 2019, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Hart (the "Hart Agreement"). The Hart Agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr. Hart or the Company. In the event of termination without cause of Mr. Hart's employment in connection with a change of control, Mr. Hart shall receive (i) an amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of Mr. Hart's then base salary paid over such 24-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; and (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Hart's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Hart's health insurance coverage for twenty-four (24) months beyond the termination date. The change of control payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Hart are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Hart signing and not rescinding the Hart Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon a qualifying termination in connection with a change of control, Mr. Hart's outstanding time-vested RSUs, including the time-vested portion of his outstanding Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest in full and his outstanding performance-vested RSUs/PSUs, including his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant, will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the consummation of the change of control. Under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan, upon a change of control, outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock units that were converted from Capital Accumulation Incentive Plan Units and Income Incentive Plan Units, respectively, will fully vest (though administrator of plan may determine to require the earlier of a period of up to one year of continued employment post change of control or termination of employment). The total estimated incremental

payments, payables and benefits to Mr. Hart in the event his employment is terminated in connection with a change of control, as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$10,731,657, with Mr. Hart's health insurance coverage continuing for twenty-four (24) months from the termination date.

In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Hart's employment without cause, Mr. Hart shall receive (i) an amount equal to eighteen (18) months of Mr. Hart's then base salary paid over such 18-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; and the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Hart's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Hart's health insurance coverage for eighteen (18) months beyond the termination date. The severance payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Hart are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Hart signing and not rescinding the Hart Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon an involuntary termination without cause, Mr. Hart's outstanding time-vested RSUs and performance-vested RSUs will be forfeited. As an exception, the portion of Mr. Hart's outstanding time-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant that is scheduled to vest within the following twelve months will vest and his performance-vested portion of his Post-Closing RSU Grant will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the full performance period, pro-rated for months served. Under the Legacy Management Incentive Plan, upon an involuntary termination without cause, outstanding restricted stock and RSUs that were converted from Capital Accumulation Incentive Plan Units and Income Incentive Plan Units, respectively, will be forfeited. The total estimated incremental payments and payables to Mr. Hart in the event of termination of his employment without cause (other than due to a change of control), as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$1,335,296, with Mr. Hart's health insurance coverage continuing for eighteen (18) months from the termination date.

Jesse Channon

On November 26, 2019, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Channon (the "Channon Agreement"). The Channon Agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr. Channon or the Company. In the event of termination without cause of Mr. Channon's employment in connection with a change of control, Mr. Channon shall receive (i) an amount equal to eighteen (18) months of Mr. Channon's then base salary paid over such 18-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; and (ii) the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Channon's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Channon's health insurance coverage for eighteen (18) months beyond the termination date. The change of control payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Channon are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Channon signing and not rescinding the Channon Agreement, a nondisclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon a qualifying termination in connection with a change of control, Mr. Channon's outstanding time-vested RSUs, will vest in full and his outstanding performance-vested RSUs/PSUs will vest, with the number of shares earned to be based on actual performance through the consummation of the change of control. The total estimated incremental payments, payables and benefits to Mr. Channon in the event his employment is terminated in connection with a change of control, as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$9,621,116, with Mr. Channon's health insurance coverage continuing for eighteen (18) months from the termination date.

In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Channon's employment without cause, Mr. Channon shall receive (i) an amount equal to twelve (12) months of Mr. Channon's then base salary paid over such 12-month period in installments on the Company's regular payroll schedule following the termination date; and the Company shall pay its share of Mr. Channon's health insurance premiums to continue Mr. Channon's health insurance coverage for twelve (12) months beyond the termination date. The severance

payments and benefits that would be made to Mr. Channon are conditioned on and subject to Mr. Channon signing and not rescinding the Channon Agreement, a non-disclosure agreement and an effective, general release of all claims in favour of the Company within no greater than 60 days following the termination date. Upon an involuntary termination without cause, Mr. Channon's outstanding time-vested RSUs and performance-vested RSUs will be forfeited. The total estimated incremental payments and payables to Mr. Channon in the event of termination of his employment without cause (other than due to a change of control), as if such event occurred on the last business day of the Company's most recently completed financial year, is \$435,534, with Mr. Channon's health insurance coverage continuing for twelve (12) months from the termination date.

Director Compensation

Non-Employee Director Compensation Programs

The Company's compensation program for non-employee directors is designed to attract and retain highly qualified non-employee directors as well as align with the long-term interests of non-employee directors with those of the Company's shareholders. The Company compensates its non-employee directors through a combination of an annual cash retainer and an annual equity grant. Assuming approval of the Omnibus Plan at the Meeting, the value of all Awards awarded under the Omnibus Plan and all other compensation paid by the Company to any non-employee director in any one calendar year cannot exceed \$600,000 (excluding any incremental fees paid to such non-employee director for service as Lead Independent Director or Non-Executive Chair (if applicable)). The Company plans to grant the annual equity grants in connection with the annual shareholder meetings going forward, with vesting to occur upon the following annual shareholder meeting. Directors are also compensated for their service as committee chairs or members. As a source of market context for developing the non-employee director compensation program, ClearBridge assessed director compensation programs among the Comparator Group that was established for executive compensation benchmarking purposes.

Non-employee directors who are appointed to the Board off-cycle (i.e., prior to or after the Company's annual shareholder meeting) are eligible for a pro-rata portion of the annual RSU grant. In 2020, Jeff Clarke, Frank Savage, and Alison Worthington received pro-rated initial grants in connection with their off-cycle appointments to the Board.

Directors who are employees of the Company receive no additional compensation for their service on the Board. Therefore, neither Nicholas Vita, the Company's CEO, nor Michael Abbott, the Company's Executive Chairman, received any additional compensation for their service on the Board in 2020.

The compensation program for the Company's non-employee directors in 2020 was as follows:

Compensation Component	Amount (\$)	
Annual base cash retainer for all non-employee directors	\$30,000	
Additional annual cash fee for Lead Director	\$25,000	
Additional annual cash fee for Chair of Audit Committee and Chair of Compensation Committee	\$25,000	
Additional annual cash fee for Chair of Nomination and Governance Committee	\$15,000	

Compensation Component	Amount (\$)	
Additional annual cash fee for non-chair Audit Committee and Compensation Committee members	\$8,500	
Additional annual cash fee for non-chair Nomination and Governance Committee members	\$4,500	
Annual RSU award for all non-employee directors	\$170,000 ⁽¹⁾	
Notes:		

(1) Reflects target value of annual RSU grant on date of grant.

Fees Paid to Non-Employee Directors in Fiscal Year 2020

The following table sets forth information concerning the annual and long-term compensation in respect of the directors of the Company, other than the directors who were also NEOs, during the financial year ended December 31, 2020. For details of the compensation for Nicholas Vita and Michael Abbott, the NEOs who are also directors of the Company, see disclosure under "*Statement of Executive Compensation – Summary Compensation Table*".

Name ⁽¹⁾	Fees Earned ⁽²⁾ (\$)	Share- Based Awards ⁽³⁾ (4) (\$)	Option- Based Awards (\$)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)	Pension Value (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total Compensation (\$)
Jeff Clarke	\$40,500	\$273,418	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$313,918
James A.C. Kennedy	\$59,500	\$178,976	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$238,476
Jonathan P. May	\$72,000	\$178,976	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$250,976
Frank Savage	\$44,375	\$273,418	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$317,793
Alison Worthington	\$5,000	\$174,834	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$179,834
Igor Gimelshtein	\$27,500	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$27,500
John Howard	\$13,375	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$13,375
David Solomon	\$10,750	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$10,750

Notes:

(1) Effective January 31, 2020, Frank Savage and Jeff Clarke were named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective November 2, 2020, Alison Worthington was named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective January 31, 2020, John Howard and David Solomon transitioned from the Board of Directors to the Strategic Advisory Board; effective June 8, 2020, Igor Gimelshtein did not stand for re-election at the 2020 annual shareholder meeting and transitioned to the role of Board Observer.

(2) Reflects annual cash retainer for Board service and, as applicable, additional cash retainer for Lead Director and additional cash retainer for Committee chairs and members.

(3) Share-based award values converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD.

(4) Reflects (i) annual RSU awards, specifically 59,234 RSUs granted to each of Messrs. Clarke, Kennedy, May, and Savage, and (ii) pro-rated initial RSU awards, specifically 47,753 RSUs granted to each of Messrs. Clarke and Savage and 43,257 RSUs granted to Ms. Worthington.

Director Share Ownership Guidelines

The Company maintains share ownership guidelines for the Company's directors. The Company's directors are required to hold Company shares with a value of 5x their annual cash retainer, and have five years to meet the guideline. As of December 31, 2020, all directors were in compliance with the share ownership guideline.

Incentive Plan Awards – Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information concerning the option-based and share-based awards granted to the Company's directors that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020.

	Option-based Awards				Share-based Awards		
Name ⁽¹⁾	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#)	Option Exercise Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date	Value of Unexercised In-the- Money Options (\$)	Number of Shares or Units of Shares That Have Not Vested (#)	Market or Payout Value of Share- Based Awards That Have Not Vested ⁽²⁾ (\$)	Market Or Payout Value of Vested Share-Based Awards Not Paid Out or Distributed (\$)
Jeff Clarke	-	\$0	-	\$0	59,234	\$359,812	\$0
James A.C. Kennedy	-	\$0	-	\$0	71,542	\$434,576	\$0
Jonathan P. May	-	\$0	-	\$0	65,388	\$397,194	\$0
Frank Savage	-	\$0	-	\$0	59,234	\$359,812	\$0
Alison Worthington	-	\$0	-	\$0	43,257	\$262,761	\$0
Igor Gimelshtein	-	\$0	-	\$0	12,308	\$74,764	\$0
John Howard	-	\$0	-	\$0	6,154	\$37,382	\$0
David Solomon	-	\$0	-	\$0	6,154	\$37,382	\$0

Notes:

(1) Effective January 31, 2020, Frank Savage and Jeff Clarke were named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective November 2, 2020, Alison Worthington was named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective January 31, 2020, John Howard and David Solomon transitioned from the Board of Directors to the Strategic Advisory Board; effective June 8, 2020, Igor Gimelshtein did not stand for re-election at the 2020 annual shareholder meeting and transitioned to the role of Board Observer.

(2) Market value of unvested share-based awards calculated based on the closing share price on December 31, 2020 (converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD).

Incentive Plan Awards - Value Vested or Earned During the Year

The following table indicates, for each of the Company's directors, a summary of the value of the optionbased and share-base awards vested in accordance with their terms for the Company's financial year ending December 31, 2020. All dollar values in table reflect USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD.

Name ⁽¹⁾	Option-Based Awards – Value Vested During the Year (\$)	Share-Based Awards – Value Vested During the Year ⁽²⁾ (\$)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation - Value Earned During the Year (\$)
Jeff Clarke	\$0	\$144,286	\$0
James A.C. Kennedy	\$0	\$75,195	\$0
Jonathan P. May	\$0	\$69,208	\$0
Frank Savage	\$0	\$144,286	\$0
Alison Worthington	\$0	\$0	\$0
Igor Gimelshtein	\$0	\$75,195	\$0
John Howard	\$0	\$69,208	\$0
David Solomon	\$0	\$69,208	\$0

Notes:

(1) Effective January 31, 2020, Frank Savage and Jeff Clarke were named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective November 2, 2020, Alison Worthington was named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective January 31, 2020, John Howard and David Solomon transitioned from the Board of Directors to the Strategic Advisory Board; effective June 8, 2020, Igor Gimelshtein did not stand for re-election at the 2020 annual shareholder meeting and transitioned to the role of Board Observer.

(2) Market value of vested share-based awards calculated based on the closing share price on the date of vesting (converted to USD based on an exchange rate of 1 CAD: 0.784808 USD).

SECURITY BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has an Omnibus Plan in place. The objective of the Omnibus Plan is to permit the directors, executive officers, employees and consultants to participate in the growth and development of the Company through the grant of incentive share awards. The Company maintains the Omnibus Plan in accordance with Section 7.08 – *Security Based Compensation Arrangements and Awards* of the NEO Exchange Listing Manual. The Omnibus Plan was approved by the Shareholders of the Company on April 26, 2019.

Summary of the Omnibus Plan

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Omnibus Plan, assuming the approval of the Omnibus Plan at the Meeting. It does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by all of the provisions of the Omnibus Plan, which is attached to this Information Circular as Schedule "C".

Eligibility

The Omnibus Plan allows for a variety of equity-based awards that provide different types of incentives to be granted to Participants, including Options, PSUs, RSUs, DSUs and SARs, which are collectively referred to herein as "Awards".

The Compensation Committee, on behalf of the Board, may grant Awards to the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Chairman of the Company and will review and approve the grants of Awards recommended by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief People and Administrative Officer to other eligible Participants. Participation in the Omnibus Plan is voluntary and, if an eligible Participant agrees to participate, the grant of Awards will be evidenced by an award agreement with each such Participant.

Shares Reserved

The maximum number of Common Shares reserved for issuance, in the aggregate, under the Omnibus Plan is 35,000,000 Common Shares. Common Shares in respect of (a) an Award that is not exercised, vested or settled prior to the termination of such Award due to the expiration, termination, cancellation or lapse of such Award, and (b) an Award that is settled in cash in lieu of settlement in Common Shares, shall, in each case, be available for Awards to be granted thereafter pursuant to the provisions of the Omnibus Plan. The maximum number of Common Shares that may be: (i) issued to insiders of the Company within any one-year period; or (ii) issuable to insiders of the Company at any time, in each case, under the Omnibus Plan alone cannot exceed 10% of the aggregate number of Common Shares to Common Shares). Assuming approval of the Omnibus Plan at the Meeting, the value of all Awards awarded under the Omnibus Plan and all other compensation paid by the Company to any non-employee director in any one calendar year cannot exceed \$600,000 (excluding any incremental fees paid to such non-employee director for service as Lead Independent Director or Non-Executive Chair (if applicable)).

Securities Issuable under the Omnibus Plan

Pursuant to and subject the terms of the Omnibus Plan, the Board may grant the following securities to Participants:

Options

The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant Options to Participants under the Omnibus Plan, but did not grant any Options in 2020 . Each Option must be confirmed by an award agreement that sets forth the number of Options to be granted and the date or dates on which such Options shall be granted, the price per Common Share to be payable upon the exercise of each such Options (the "**Exercise Price**"), relevant vesting provisions (including performance criteria, if applicable) and the expiry date of the Options. The Exercise Price for Common Shares that are the subject of any Options shall not be less than the market value of such Common Shares at the time of the grant.

Subject to the provisions of the Omnibus Plan, each Option must be exercised no later than ten (10) years after the Grant Date or such shorter period as set out in the Participant's award agreement, at which time such Option will expire.

Stock Appreciation Rights

The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant SARs to Participants under the Omnibus Plan, but did not grant any SARs during 2020. Each SAR must be confirmed by an award agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each SAR and may include, without limitation, whether the SAR is settled in cash or Common Shares, the vesting, expiry and base price per Common Share of the SAR and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the SAR will comply with any provisions respecting SARs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company. SARs granted under the Omnibus Plan may not have a term in excess of ten (10) years' duration unless required otherwise by applicable law.

Performance Share Units

The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant PSUs to Participants under the Omnibus Plan. Each PSU must be confirmed by an award agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each PSU and may include, without limitation, the applicable performance period and performance criteria, vesting and terms of the PSUs and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the PSUs will comply with any provisions respecting PSUs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company.

Subject to vesting and other conditions and provisions set forth in the Omnibus Plan and in the Participant's award agreement, the Compensation Committee shall determine whether each PSU awarded to a Participant shall entitle the Participant: (i) to receive one Common Share issued from treasury; (ii) to receive the cash equivalent of one Common Share; or (iii) to elect to receive either one Common Share from treasury, the cash equivalent of one Common Share or a combination of cash and Common Shares.

For each award of PSUs, the Compensation Committee shall establish the period in which any performance criteria and other vesting conditions must be met in order for a Participant to be entitled to receive Common Shares in exchange for all or a portion of the PSUs held by such Participant. The Compensation Committee shall also, in its sole discretion, determine the relevant conditions and vesting provisions, including the applicable performance period and performance criteria, of such PSUs.

Restricted Share Units

The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant RSUs to Participants under the Omnibus Plan. Each RSU must be confirmed by an award agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each RSU and may include, without limitation, the vesting and terms of the RSUs and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the RSUs will comply with any provisions respecting RSUs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company.

Subject to vesting and other conditions and provisions set forth in the Omnibus Plan and in the Participant's award agreement, the Compensation Committee shall determine whether each RSU awarded to a Participant shall entitle the Participant: (i) to receive one Common Share issued from treasury; (ii) to receive the cash equivalent of one Common Share; or (iii) to elect to receive either one Common Share from treasury, the cash equivalent of one Common Share or a combination of cash and Common Shares.

For each award of RSUs, the Compensation Committee, in its sole discretion shall determine the relevant conditions, vesting provisions and restriction period of such RSUs.

Deferred Share Units

The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant DSUs to Participants under the Omnibus Plan, but did not grant any DSUs during 2020. A DSU is a unit granted to a Participant representing the right to receive a Common Share or the cash equivalent of one Common Share, subject to restrictions and conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine at the time of grant.

Vesting and Expiry

The terms and conditions of grants of Awards, including the quantity, type of award, grant date, vesting conditions, vesting periods, settlement date and other terms and conditions with respect to these Awards, will be set out in the Participant's award agreement. The impact of certain events upon the rights of holders of these types of Awards, including termination for cause, resignation, retirement, termination other than for cause and death or long-term disability, will be set out in the Participant's award agreement.

An Award shall be exercisable during a period established by the Compensation Committee on behalf of the Board which shall commence on the date of the grant and shall terminate no later than ten (10) years after the date of the granting of the Awards or such shorter period as the Compensation Committee may determine. In the case of options, the minimum exercise price will be determined based on the closing price of the Common Shares on the last trading day before the date such option is granted. The Omnibus Plan provides that the exercise period shall automatically be extended if the date on which it is scheduled to terminate shall fall during a black-out period. In such cases, the extended exercise period shall terminate 10 business days after the last day of the black-out period.

Non-Transferability

The interest of any Participant in any Award is not assignable or transferable, whether voluntary, involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

Acceleration

Subject to the terms of the Omnibus Plan, the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the vesting, delivery, or exercisability of, or payment for or lapse of restrictions on, or waive any condition in respect of, Awards.

Capitalization Adjustments

The Omnibus Plan provides that appropriate adjustments, if any, will be made by the Compensation Committee on behalf of the Board in connection with a reclassification, reorganization or other change of the Common Shares, share split or consolidation, distribution, merger or amalgamation, in the Common Shares issuable or amounts payable to preclude a dilution or enlargement of the benefits under the Omnibus Plan.

Change of Control

In connection with a change of control of the Company, the Compensation Committee on behalf of the Board will take such steps as are reasonably necessary or desirable to cause the conversion or exchange or replacement of outstanding Awards into, or for, rights or other securities of substantially equivalent value in the continuing entity. If a Participant is terminated without cause following a change of control, the vesting of such Participant's awards will be subject to the Participant's employment agreement or award agreement.

Amendments to the Omnibus Plan

The Compensation Committee, on behalf of the Board, may amend the Omnibus Plan or any securities granted under the Omnibus Plan at any time without the consent of a Participant provided that such amendment shall: (i) not adversely alter or impair any Award previously granted except as permitted by the terms of the Omnibus Plan; (ii) be in compliance with applicable law and subject to any regulatory approvals including, where required, the approval of the stock exchange; and (iii) be subject to shareholder approval, where required by law, the requirements of the stock exchange on which the Common Shares are trading or the Omnibus Plan, provided however that shareholder approval shall not be required for the following amendments and the Compensation Committee, on behalf of Board, may make any changes which may include but are not limited to:

- any amendment to the vesting provisions, if applicable, or assignability provisions of Awards;
- any amendment regarding the effect of termination of a Participant's employment or engagement;
- any amendment which accelerates the date on which any Award may be exercised under the Omnibus Plan;
- any amendment necessary to comply with applicable law or the requirements of the stock exchange on which the Common Shares are trading or any other regulatory body;
- any amendment of a "housekeeping" nature, including, without limitation, to clarify the meaning of an existing provision of the Omnibus Plan, correct or supplement any provision of the Omnibus Plan that is inconsistent with any other provision of the Omnibus Plan, correct any grammatical or typographical errors or amend the definitions in the Omnibus Plan;
- any amendment regarding the administration of the Omnibus Plan; and
- any other amendment that does not require the approval of shareholders pursuant to the amendment provisions of the Omnibus Plan,

provided that the alteration, amendment or variance does not:

- permit Awards granted under the Omnibus Plan to be transferable or assignable other than for normal estate settlement purposes;
- increase the maximum number of Common Shares issuable under the Omnibus Plan, other than an adjustment pursuant to a change in capitalization;
- reduce the exercise price of Awards;
- extend the expiry date of an Award benefitting an insider of the Company, except in the case of an extension due to black-out period;
- extend the expiry date of an Award where the exercise price is lower than the market price, except in case of an extension due to a black-out period;
- remove or exceed the insider participation limits; or
- amend the amendment provisions of the Omnibus Plan.

Termination of the Omnibus Plan

The Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, suspend or terminate the Omnibus Plan at any time or from time to time and/or amend or revise the terms of the Omnibus Plan or of any Award granted under the Omnibus Plan and any agreement relating thereto, provided that such suspension, termination, amendment, or revision shall (a) not adversely alter or impair any Award previously granted except as permitted by the terms of the Plan or upon the consent of the applicable Participant(s); and be in compliance with applicable law, applicable NEO Exchange policies or the Canadian Securities Exchange policies (or any other stock exchange upon which the Company has applied to list its Shares) and with the prior approval, if required, of the shareholders of the Company.

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth the number of Common Shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding convertible securities, the weighted-average exercise price of such outstanding convertible securities and the number of Common Shares remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans as at December 31, 2020.

Plan Category	Number of Common Shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding securities ⁽¹⁾	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding securities ⁽²⁾	Number of Common Shares remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in the first column)
Equity compensation plans approved by Shareholders	13,790,439	\$10.90	12,982,359 ⁽³⁾
Equity compensation plans not approved by Shareholders	Nil.	Nil.	Nil.
Total	13,790,439	\$10.90	12,982,359 ⁽³⁾

Notes:

(1) The 13,790,439 Common Shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding securities, warrants and rights consists of (i) 3,263,012 Common Shares that may be issued upon the vesting of PSUs, (ii) 10,472,043 Common Shares that may be issued upon the vesting of RSUs and (iii) 55,384 Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise of Options. For outstanding PSUs whose performance has been certified, reflects number of shares eligible to vest; for outstanding PSUs whose performance has not yet been certified, reflects target number of shares.

(2) Represents the weighted-average exercise price of Options to purchase 55,384 Common Shares. This weighted average does not take into account Common Shares that may be issued upon the vesting of PSUs or RSUs.

(3) Convertible securities remaining as of December 31, 2020, based on a maximum of 10% of the aggregate number of Common Shares reserved for issuance (assuming the conversion of all Proportionate Voting Shares to Common Shares) (i.e., 276,511,831 shares).

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No director, proposed director, executive officer, nor any of their respective associates or affiliates, is or has been indebted to the Company or its subsidiaries since the beginning of the Company's most recently completed financial year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE

The Board is committed to the highest standards of integrity, fiduciary duty and corporate governance. National Instrument 58-101 - *Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices* ("**NI 58-101**") and National Policy 58-201 - *Corporate Governance Guidelines* ("**NP 58-201**", and together with NI 58-101, the "**CSA Guidelines**") set out a series of guidelines for effective corporate governance. Under the CSA Guidelines, the Company must disclose on an annual basis the corporate governance practices it has adopted. The Company summarizes such practices, in addition to certain other governance matters under Schedule "A" to this Information Circular.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed in this Information Circular, neither the Company nor any director, proposed director or officer of the Company, nor any other insider of the Company, nor any associate or affiliate of any one of them has or has had, at any time since the beginning of the year ended December 31, 2020, any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or proposed transaction that has materially affected or would materially affect the Company.

OTHER BUSINESS

Management of the Company is not aware of any other business to come before the Meeting other than as set forth in the Notice of Meeting. If any other business properly comes before the Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the form of proxy to vote the Shares represented thereby in accordance with their best judgment on such matter.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Company is available on SEDAR at *www.sedar.com*. Financial information is provided in the audited consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, which has been filed on SEDAR. Shareholders may also contact the Vice President, Investor Relations of the Company by phone at 212-271-0915, or by e-mail at *levans@col-care.com* to request a copy of this document.

SCHEDULE "A" STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Capitalized terms used in this Schedule "A" but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Information Circular to which this Schedule "A" is appended.

Set out below is a description of the Company's current corporate governance practices and other information relating to the Board, per the CSA Guidelines.

The Board and senior management consider good corporate governance to be central to the effective and efficient operation of the Company. Listed below is a brief discussion of the Company's approach to corporate governance.

Board of Directors

The Board's principal duties and responsibilities are described in the Company's Mandate of the Board of Directors, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix 1 to Schedule "A". Certain aspects of the composition and organization of the Board are prescribed and/or governed by the *Business Corporations Act* (British Columbia) and the constating documents of the Company.

The Board facilitates its exercise of independent supervision over management through the participation of directors. Upon the appointment of Julie Hill to the Board on June 7, 2021, the Board shall have eight directors of whom six are independent within the meaning of National Instrument 52-110 - Audit *Committees.* The Board members shall be Nicholas Vita, Michael Abbott, Jeff Clarke, Julie Hill, James A.C. Kennedy, Jonathan P. May, Frank Savage and Alison Worthington. Jonathan P. May is the Lead Director.

Jeff Clarke, Julie Hill, James A.C. Kennedy, Jonathan P. May, Frank Savage and Alison Worthington are independent directors in that they do not have a direct or indirect material relationship with the Company which could, in the view of the Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise of the director's independent judgment. Nicholas Vita is not considered independent as he is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Michael Abbott is not considered independent as he is the Executive Chairman of the Company.

Position Descriptions

The Board has developed a position description for the Lead Director. The role of the Lead Director is to facilitate the functioning of the Board independently of the senior executives of the Company and provide independent leadership to the Board and to the individual directors on the Board. The Board has also developed a position description for the Chair of the Board, Michael Abbott. The role of the Chair of the Board is to provide overall leadership to enhance the effectiveness and performance of the Board, the committees of the Board, and individual directors of the Board, to work with the Lead Director and other directors to ensure the Board is provided with timely and relevant information as is necessary to effectively discharge its statutory duties and responsibilities and to foster ethical and responsible decision making by the Board, the committees of the Board and individual directors.

Further, the Board has developed written position descriptions for the chair of each board committee. The position descriptions for the chair of each board committee can be found in the corresponding committee charters. Copies of the position descriptions for the Lead Director, the Chair of the Board and the chair of each committee can be found on the Company's website at *www.col-care.com*.

The Board has not developed a written position description for the Chief Executive Officer. However, the Chief Executive Officer leads the management of the Company's business and affairs and the implementation of the resolutions and policies of the Board. In this capacity, his key responsibilities are determined with reference to those typically carried out by an individual in this position and by ongoing discussion with the Board and include: leading the development of the Company's overall strategy; operational direction including facilities development, product development, geographic expansion and strategic relationships; human resources management; Board interaction; risk management; and effective communication with shareholders, clients, employees, regulators and other stakeholders.

Meetings of independent directors

The independent directors meet for in camera sessions without non-independent directors and members of management at the end of each regular Board meeting (unless they waive such requirement).

Attendance

The attendance record of each director for all Board meetings held during the Company's most recently completed financial year is set out below:

Director ⁽¹⁾	Board Meetings Attended	Audit Committee Meetings Attended	Compensation Committee Meetings Attended	Nomination and Governance Committee Attendance
Nicholas Vita	4/4	N/A	N/A	10/10
Michael Abbott	4/4	N/A	N/A	10/10
Jeff Clarke	4/4	6/7	N/A	8/10
James A.C. Kennedy	4/4	N/A	8/8	8/10
Jonathan P. May	4/4	7/7	8/8	N/A
Frank Savage	4/4	3/3	7/8	8/10
Alison Worthington	1/1	N/A	N/A	N/A
Igor Gimelshtein	2/2	4/4	N/A	N/A
John Howard	N/A	N/A	1/1	2/2
David F. Solomon	N/A	N/A	N/A	2/2

Note:

 Effective January 31, 2020, Frank Savage and Jeff Clarke were named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective November 2, 2020, Alison Worthington was named to the Board of Directors of Columbia Care Inc.; effective January 31, 2020, John Howard and David Solomon transitioned from the Board of Directors to the Strategic Advisory Board.; effective June 8, 2020, Igor Gimelshtein did not stand for re-election at the 2020 annual shareholder meeting and transitioned to the role of Board Observer.

Directorships

The following directors are presently directors of other reporting issuers:

Director	Name of Other Reporting Issuer	Stock Exchange
James A.C. Kennedy	United Continental Holdings, Inc.	Nasdaq
Jonathan P. May	INDUS Realty Trust, Inc.	Nasdaq
Jeff Clarke	E.Merge Technology Acquisition Corp.	Nasdaq

Ethical Business Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics, a copy of which can be found on the Company's website at *www.col-care.com*.

All Board members, officers, employees, consultants, contractors and agents of the Company (collectively, "**Representatives**") are committed to maintaining the highest standards of integrity and ethical business conduct in the management of the Company and their interaction with all key securityholders. These standards can only be achieved by the Company adhering to the values and principles of conduct.

The Company expects all Representatives to conduct themselves in an ethical and law- abiding manner, in all areas, including but not limited to conflicts of interest and the protection and proper use of corporate assets, information and opportunities.

Conflicts of Interest

Representatives shall act honestly and in good faith in discharging their duties with a view to the best interests of the Company. Representatives are expected to put the interests of the Company before their own. Representatives shall avoid situations involving a conflict, or potential conflict, between their personal, family or business interests, and the interests of the Company.

Pursuant to the *Business Corporations Act* (British Columbia), any officer or director of the Company with a conflict of interest must disclose the nature and extent of such conflict to the Board and recuse themselves from a matter that materially conflicts with that individual's duty as a director or senior officer of the Company. If a Representative is faced with a conflict, they shall promptly disclose such conflict, or potential conflict, to the Corporate Secretary.

Protection and Proper Use of Corporate Assets, Information and Opportunities

All Representatives shall deal with the Company's assets, including all data, information (confidential or otherwise), records, products, material, facilities, inventory, "know-how", trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property, and equipment, with the strictest integrity and with due regard to the interests of the Company. Similarly, Representatives must not disclose commercially confidential or otherwise sensitive information. The Company's assets may not to be used for personal gain or benefit. In addition, all Representatives must act in a manner to protect such assets from loss, damage, misuse, theft, misappropriation, disparagement and waste, and ensure that such assets are used only for legitimate business purposes.

Information is one of the Company's key assets. It is the Company's policy to ensure that its proprietary and confidential information, including proprietary and confidential information that has been entrusted to the Company by others ("**Confidential Information**"), is adequately safeguarded. All Representatives are responsible for protecting Confidential Information, including information about the Company's business, assets, opportunities, suppliers and competitors, from unauthorized advertent or inadvertent disclosure.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

All Representatives shall comply with the laws, rules and regulations of the jurisdictions where they carry out their duties and all jurisdictions where the Company conducts its business activities. All Representatives shall comply with the Code of Ethics and all Company policies that apply to them, including, without

limitation, the Code of Ethics, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Compliance Policy, Insider Trading Policy, and Whistleblower Policy.

Compliance with and Violations of the Code

The Nomination and Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the Code of Ethics at least annually and will recommend any necessary or appropriate changes to the Board for consideration.

Director Term Limits and Other Mechanisms of Board Renewal

The Company does not have a retirement policy and does not discriminate based on age. The Company considers it to be an integral role of the Board and the Nomination and Governance Committee to assess director engagement and fitness to be a director of the Company.

Similarly, the Board has not adopted a term limit for Directors or established a formal process for the renewal of Board membership. The Board is of the view that the imposition of arbitrary director term limits may diminish the benefits derived from continuity amongst members and their familiarity with the Company and the industry in which it operates, and could unnecessarily expose the Company to losing experienced and valuable talent. The Board's renewal process is built around the concept of performance management. To that end, the Board relies on assessment procedures, and the role of the Nomination and Governance Committee, to ensure the quality and expertise of its Board.

Diversity

Policies Regarding the Representation of Women

The Board does not currently have a formal policy with regard to the consideration of diversity in identifying director or executive nominees or a written policy relating to the identification and nomination of women directors or executives. The Company has not adopted such formal policies on diversity but regularly considers diversity (including the representation of women on the Board) as one of a number of relevant factors when considering potential new nominees. The Company recognizes the potential benefit of diversity in leadership positions, including with respect to its Board and executive officer positions. The Board is committed to increasing the level of diversity at the Board and executive officer level as Board and management turnover occurs from time to time taking into account the relevant career experience, industry knowledge and experience, and financial and other specialized experience desired at a particular time by the Board and its committees.

Consideration of the Representation of Women in the Director Identification and Selection Process

In general, the Board aspires to continuously improve the diversity of the Board and the Company's management team. While the Board has not adopted any formal diversity policies and makes executive officer appointment decisions based on merit, the Board believes that diversity (including, but not limited to, gender) is important to ensure that the profiles of directors and members of the Company's executive management provide the necessary range of perspectives, experience and expertise required to achieve effective stewardship and management. The Company believes that diversity is an important attribute of a well-functioning Board and an efficient team of executive officers. The Company recognizes that gender diversity is a significant aspect of diversity and believes women play an important leadership role in executing on the Company's strategy, and this belief forms an important part of the focus of management

in the appointment and recruitment of officers and the Board in the search and selection of nominee directors.

Targets Regarding the Representation of Women on the Board and in Executive Officer Positions

At this time, the Company has not adopted a target regarding the representation of women on the Board or in executive officer positions. The Company does not adopt targets because the Company is of the view that its current practice of considering diversity as a factor in selecting candidates as potential directors or executive officers permits the Company to balance the benefit of diversity with other relevant considerations, including relevant career experience, industry knowledge and experience, and financial and other specialized experience.

Upon the appointment of Julie Hill to the Board, the Board shall include two women (25% of directors). One executive officer of the Company is a woman (11% of executive officers). Twenty-nine (29%) of the Company's senior leadership (executive officers, senior vice presidents and vice presidents) are women.

Directors' and Officer's Liability Insurance

The Company carries directors' and officers' liability insurance policy which is designed to protect the Company and its directors and officers against any legal action which may arise as a result of wrongful acts on the part of directors and/or officers of the Company as well as securities related litigation. Such policy is written with a maximum limit and subject to a corporate deductible on all claims.

NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE INFORMATION

The Nomination and Governance Committee is governed by a Nomination and Governance Committee Charter, a copy of which can be found on the Company's website at *www.col-care.com*.

Nomination of Directors

The Nomination and Governance Committee is currently comprised of Frank Savage, Michael Abbott, Jeff Clarke, James A.C. Kennedy, and Nicholas Vita. The majority of Committee members are independent directors as Frank Savage, Jeff Clarke, and James A.C. Kennedy hold three of the five seats, while Nicholas Vita and Michael Abbott are not considered to be independent given their positions as the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Chairman of the Company, respectively. The Board is confident that any potential risk of the non-independent directors being unable to exercise impartial judgment would be mitigated by the fact that the majority of the committee members are independent directors. Therefore, the Board is of the view that Nicholas Vita and Michael Abbott's roles with the Company do not render them unable to exercise the impartial judgment necessary for the Nomination & Governance Committee to conduct an objective nomination process.

Annually, the Nomination and Governance Committee (i) reviews and assesses the size, composition and operation of the Board to ensure effective decision making; (ii) reviews and assesses the size, composition and chairpersons of all of the committees of the Board; and (iii) identifies and reviews candidates for appointment or nomination to the Board based upon an assessment of the independence, skills, qualifications and experience of the candidate, and makes recommendations to the Board for consideration.

In respect of nomination of candidates for election to the Board, the Nomination and Governance Committee (i) coordinates the search for qualified candidates with input from management and the Board; (ii) may engage a candidate search firm to assist in identifying potential nominees, if it deems such engagement necessary and appropriate; (iii) recommends a nominee and seeks Board endorsement of the selected candidate, based on its judgment as to which candidate will best serve the interests of the Company's Shareholders.

Board Assessments

The Nomination and Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the Board and the performance of the directors. The Nomination and Governance Committee assesses the operation of the Board and the committees, the adequacy of information given to directors, communication between the Board and management, and the strategic direction and processes of the Board and committees. The Nomination and Governance Committee recommends changes to enhance the performance of the Board accordingly.

Based upon the Corporation's size, its current state of development and the number of individuals on the Board, the Board considers a formal process for assessing the effectiveness and contribution of the Board as a whole, its committees or individual directors to be unnecessary at this time. In light of the fact that the Board and its committees meet on several occasions each year, each director has regular opportunities to assess the Board as a whole, its committees and other directors in relation to the Board's and such director's assessment of the competencies and skills that the Board and its committees should possess. The Board plans to continue to evaluate its own effectiveness and the effectiveness of its committees and individual directors in such manner.

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Nomination and Governance Committee provides all new directors with comprehensive orientation to, among other things, fully understand the role of the Board and its committees, the contribution individual directors are expected to make, and the nature and operation of the Company's business. The Nomination and Governance Committee also provides continuing education opportunities for all directors so that individual directors may maintain or enhance their skills and abilities as directors, as well as to ensure their knowledge and understanding of the Company's business remains current.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INFORMATION

For information regarding the Company's Compensation Committee, including the process by which the Compensation Committee determines compensation for the Company's directors and officers, the composition of the Compensation Committee and the powers, operation and responsibilities of the Compensation Committee, please see under the heading "*Statement of Executive Compensation – Compensation Discussion and Analysis*".

AUDIT COMMITTEE INFORMATION

The Audit Committee is governed by an Audit Committee Charter, a copy of which is attached to the Company's Annual Information Form dated March 31, 2021 (the "**AIF**"). The information required to be disclosed by section 5.1 of National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees can be found under the heading "*Audit Committee Information*" of the Company's AIF.

APPENDIX 1 TO SCHEDULE "A" MANDATE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

See attached.

MANDATE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 Introduction

The members of the board of directors (respectively, the "**Directors**" and the "**Board**") of Columbia Care Inc. (the "**Company**") are elected by the shareholders of Company and are responsible for the stewardship of Company. The purpose of this mandate (the "**Board Mandate**") is to describe the principal duties and responsibilities of the Board, as well as some of the policies and procedures that apply to the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities.

Certain aspects of the composition and organization of the Board are prescribed and/or governed by the *Business Corporations Act* (British Columbia) and the constating documents of the Company.

Section 2 Chair of the Board

The chair of the Board (the "**Chair**") shall be appointed by the board of directors.

Section 3 Board Size

The constating documents of the Company provide that the Board shall be comprised of a minimum of three (3) Directors and a maximum of fifteen (15) Directors. The Board shall initially be comprised of seven (7) Directors. The Board shall periodically review its size in light of its duties and responsibilities from time to time.

Section 4 Independence

The Board shall be comprised of a minimum of three independent Directors. A Director shall be considered independent if he or she would be considered independent for the purposes of National Instrument 58-101 — *Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices*.

Section 5 Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Company and is expected to focus on guidance and strategic oversight with a view to increasing shareholder value.

In accordance with the *Business Corporations Act* (British Columbia), in discharging his or her duties, each Director must act honestly and in good faith, with a view to the best interests of the Company. Each Director must also exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

Section 6 Board Meetings

- (1) In accordance with the constating documents of the Company, meetings of the Board may be held at such times and places as the Chair may determine and as many times per year as necessary to effectively carry out the Board's responsibilities. The independent Directors may meet without senior executives of the Company or any non-Independent Directors, as required.
- (2) The Chair shall be responsible for establishing or causing to be established the agenda for each Board meeting, and for ensuring that regular minutes of Board proceedings are kept and circulated on a timely basis for review and approval.
- (3) The Board may invite, at its discretion, any other individuals to attend its meetings. Senior executives of the Company shall attend a meeting if invited by the Board.

Section 7 Delegations and Approval Authorities

- (1) The Board shall appoint the Executive Chair and chief executive officer of the Company (the "**CEO**") and delegate to the Executive Chair, CEO and other senior executives the authority over the day-to-day management of the business and affairs of Company.
- (2) The Board may delegate certain matters it is responsible for to the committees of the Board, currently consisting of the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nomination and Governance Committee. The Board may appoint other committees, as it deems appropriate to the extent permissible under applicable law. The Board will, however, retain its oversight function and ultimate responsibility for such matters and associated delegated responsibilities.

Section 8 Strategic Planning Process and Risk Management

- (1) The Board shall adopt a strategic planning process to establish objectives and goals for the Company's business and shall review, approve and modify as appropriate the strategies proposed by senior executives to achieve such objectives and goals. The Board shall review and approve, at least on an annual basis, a strategic plan which takes into account, among other things, the opportunities and risks of the Company's business and affairs.
- (2) The Board, in conjunction with management, shall be responsible to identify the principal risks of the Company's business and oversee management's implementation of appropriate systems to seek to effectively monitor, manage and mitigate the impact of such risks. Pursuant to its duty to oversee the implementation of effective risk management policies and procedures, the Board may delegate to applicable Board committees the responsibility for assessing and implementing appropriate policies and procedures to address specified risks, including delegation of financial and related risk management to the Audit Committee and delegation of risks associated with compensation policies and practices to the Compensation Committee.

Section 9 Succession Planning, Appointment and Supervision of Senior Executives

- (1) The Board shall approve the corporate goals and objectives of the Executive Chair and CEO and, with the assistance of the Nomination and Governance Committee, review the performance of the Executive Chair and CEO against such corporate goals and objectives. The Board shall take steps to satisfy itself as to the quality of the Executive Chair, CEO and other senior executives of the Company and that the Executive Chair, CEO and other senior executives create a culture of integrity throughout the organization.
- (2) The Board shall approve the succession plan for the Company, including the selection, appointment, supervision and evaluation of the senior executives of Company, and shall also approve the compensation of the senior executives of Company upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee.

Section 10 Financial Reporting and Internal Controls

The Board shall review and monitor, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting, including any significant deficiencies or changes in internal control and the quality and integrity of the Company's external financial reporting processes.

Section 11 Regulatory Filings

The Board shall approve applicable regulatory filings that require or are advisable for the Board to approve, which the Board may delegate in accordance with Section 7(b) of this mandate. These include, but are not limited to, the annual audited financial statements, interim financial statements and related

management discussion and analysis accompanying such financial statements, management proxy circulars, annual information forms, offering documents and other applicable disclosure.

Section 12 Corporate Disclosure and Communications

The Board will seek to ensure that corporate disclosure of the Company complies with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and the rules and regulations of the stock exchanges upon which Company's securities are listed. In addition, the Board shall adopt appropriate procedures designed to permit the Board to receive feedback from shareholders on material issues.

Section 13 Corporate Policies

The Board shall adopt and periodically review policies and procedures designed to ensure that the Company and its Directors, officers and employees comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and conduct the Company's business ethically and with honesty and integrity.

Section 14 Review of Mandate

The Board may, from time to time, permit departures from the terms of this Board Mandate, either prospectively or retrospectively. This Board Mandate is not intended to give rise to civil liability on the part of the Company or its Directors or officers to shareholders, security holders, customers, suppliers, partners, competitors, employees or other persons, or to any other liability whatsoever on their part.

The Board may review and recommend changes to the Board Mandate from time to time and the Nomination and Governance Committee may periodically review and assess the adequacy of this mandate and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for consideration.

Dated:

April 26, 2019

Approved by:

Board of Directors of the Company

SCHEDULE "B" OMNIBUS PLAN RESOLUTION

In order to be effective, the following ordinary resolution requires approval by a majority of the votes duly cast online or by proxy by the Shareholders at the Meeting.

BE IT RESOLVED as an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders of the Company that:

- 1. The Amended and Restated Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "**Omnibus Plan**") of the Company, substantially in the form as set forth in Schedule "C" of the Company's management information circular dated June 2, 2021 (the "**Information Circular**"), is renewed and approved as the omnibus long-term incentive plan of the Company;
- 2. The proposed amendments to the Omnibus Plan set out in the Information Circular, are hereby approved;
- 3. The form of Omnibus Plan may be amended in order to satisfy the requirements or requests of any regulatory authorities without requiring further approval of the Shareholders;
- 4. Any director of officer of the Company be and he or she is hereby authorized and directed, on behalf of the Company, to execute and deliver all such documents and to do all such other acts or things as he or she may determine to be necessary or advisable to give effect to this resolution.

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy, if not expressly directed to the contrary in the proxy, to vote FOR the ordinary resolution authorizing the approval of the Omnibus Plan.

SCHEDULE "C" COLUMBIA CARE OMNIBUS PLAN

See attached.

COLUMBIA CARE INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED OMNIBUS LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1 — DEF	FINITIONS	1
Section 1.1	Definitions	1
Article 2 — PUF	RPOSE AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN; GRANTING OF AWARDS	6
Section 2.1	Purpose of the Plan.	
Section 2.2	Implementation and Administration of the Plan	
Section 2.3	Eligible Participants.	
Section 2.4 Section 2.5	Shares Subject to the Plan Participation Limits	
Article 3 — OP	TIONS	9
Section 3.1	Nature of Options.	9
Section 3.2	Option Awards	9
Section 3.3	Exercise Price.	
Section 3.4	Expiry Date; Blackout Period	
Section 3.5	Option Agreement.	
Section 3.6	Exercise of Options.	
Section 3.7	Method of Exercise and Payment of Purchase Price.	
Section 3.8	Termination of Employment or Service.	
Section 3.9	Incentive Stock Options	.12
Article 4 —STC	OCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS	.12
Section 4.1	Nature of SARs	
Section 4.2	SAR Awards	
Section 4.3	Exercise of SARs	.13
Article 5 — DEF	FERRED SHARE UNITS	.13
Section 5.1	Nature of DSUs.	
Section 5.2	DSU Awards	
Section 5.3	Redemption of DSUs	14
Article 6 — SHA	ARE UNITS	.14
Section 6.1	Nature of Share Units.	
Section 6.2	Share Unit Awards.	
Section 6.3 Section 6.4	Performance Criteria and Performance Period Applicable to PSU Awards Share Unit Vesting Determination Date	
Article 7 —GEI	NERAL CONDITIONS	.16
Section 7.1	General Conditions applicable to Awards.	.16
Section 7.2	Dividend Share Units.	
Section 7.3	Unfunded Plan	.17

Article 8 — ADJUSTMENTS AND AMENDMENTS		17
Section 8.1	Adjustment to Shares Subject to Outstanding Awards	17
Section 8.2	Amendment or Discontinuance of the Plan	18
Section 8.3	Change of Control.	19
Article 9 —MIS	CELLANEOUS	20
Section 9.1	Currency.	20
Section 9.2		20
Section 9.3	Use of an Administrative Agent and Trustee	21
	Tax Withholding.	
Section 9.5	Reorganization of the Company.	22
Section 9.6	Governing Laws.	
Section 9.7	Successors and Assigns.	23
Section 9.8	Severability	
Section 9.9		
Section 9.10	Effective Date of the Plan	23

COLUMBIA CARE INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED OMNIBUS LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Columbia Care Inc. (the "**Company**") has established an Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "**Plan**") effective April 26, 2019 for certain qualified directors, officers, employees and Consultants (as defined herein), providing ongoing services to the Company and/or its Subsidiaries (as defined herein) that can have a significant impact on the Company's long-term results. The Company hereby amends and restates the Plan effective June 1, 2021.

ARTICLE 1—DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1 Definitions.

Where used herein or in any amendments hereto or in any communication required or permitted to be given hereunder, the following terms shall have the following meanings, respectively, unless the context otherwise requires:

"**Affiliates**" has the meaning given to this term in the *Securities Act* (Ontario), as such legislation may be amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time;

"Associate", where used to indicate a relationship with a Participant, means (i) any partner of that Participant and (ii) the spouse of that Participant and that Participant's children, as well as that Participant's relatives and that Participant's spouse's relatives, if they share that Participant's residence;

"Award Agreement" means, individually or collectively, the Option Agreement, RSU Agreement, SAR Agreement, PSU Agreement, DSU Agreement and/or the Employment Agreement or Consulting Agreement pursuant to which an Award is granted, as the context requires;

"Awards" means Options, SARs, RSUs, PSUs and/or DSUs granted to a Participant pursuant to the terms of the Plan;

"Black-Out Period" means the period of time when, pursuant to any policies or determinations of the Company, securities of the Company may not be traded by Insiders or other specified persons;

"Board" means the board of directors of the Company as constituted from time to time;

"Broker" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.7(2) hereof;

"**Business Day**" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday, when banks are generally open for business in Toronto, Ontario or New York City, New York for the transaction of banking business;

"Cancellation" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.4(1) hereof;

"Cash Equivalent" means:

(a) in the case of Share Units, the amount of money equal to the Market Value multiplied by the number of vested Share Units in the Participant's Account, net

of any applicable taxes in accordance with Section 9.4, on the Share Unit Settlement Date;

(b) in the case of DSU Awards, the amount of money equal to the Market Value multiplied by the whole number of DSUs then recorded in the Participant's Account which the Participant requests to redeem pursuant to the DSU Redemption Notice, net of any applicable taxes in accordance with Section 9.4, on the date the Company receives, or is deemed to receive, the DSU Redemption Notice;

"Change of Control" means unless the Compensation Committee determines otherwise, the happening, in a single transaction or in a series of related transactions, of any of the following events:

- (a) the consummation of any transaction or series of transactions (other than a transaction described in clause (b) below) pursuant to which any person or group of persons acting jointly or in concert acquires the direct or indirect beneficial ownership of securities of the Company representing 50% or more of the aggregate voting power of all of the Company's then issued and outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company, other than an acquisition by a person that was an Affiliate of the Company at the time of such acquisition, and other than any such acquisition that occurs upon the exercise or settlement of options or other securities granted by the Company under any of the Company's equity incentive plans.
- (b) there is consummated an arrangement, amalgamation, merger, consolidation or similar transaction involving (directly or indirectly) the Company and, immediately after the consummation of such arrangement, amalgamation, merger, consolidation or similar transaction, the shareholders of the Company immediately prior thereto do not beneficially own, directly or indirectly, either (A) outstanding voting securities representing more than 50% of the combined outstanding voting power of the surviving or resulting entity in such amalgamation, merger, consolidation or similar transaction or (B) more than 50% of the combined outstanding voting power of the parent of the surviving or resulting entity in such arrangement, amalgamation merger, consolidation or similar transaction;
- (c) any transaction or series of transactions resulting in the consummation of (A) the sale, lease, exchange, license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company's assets to a person other than a person that was an Affiliate of the Company at the time of such sale, lease, exchange, license or other disposition or (B) a sale, lease, exchange, license or other disposition to an entity, unless more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the voting securities of such entity are beneficially owned by shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately prior to such sale, lease, exchange, license or other disposition;
- (d) the passing of a resolution by the Board or shareholders of the Company to substantially liquidate the assets of the Company or wind up the Company's business or significantly rearrange its affairs in one or more transactions or series

of transactions or the commencement of proceedings for such a liquidation, winding-up or re-arrangement (except where such re-arrangement is part of a bona fide reorganization of the Company in circumstances where the business of the Company is continued and the shareholdings remain substantially the same following the re-arrangement);

- (e) individuals who, on the Effective Date, are members of the Board (the "**Incumbent Board**") cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the members of the Board; provided, however, that if the appointment or election (or nomination for election) of any new Board member was approved or recommended by a majority vote of the members of the Incumbent Board then still in office, such new member will, for purposes of the Plan, be considered as a member of the Incumbent Board; or
- (f) any other matter determined by the Board to be a Change of Control.

"Code" means the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder;

"**Code of Ethics**" means any code of ethics adopted by the Company, as modified from time to time;

"**Company**" means Columbia Care Inc., a Company existing under the *Business Corporations Act* (British Columbia);

"**Compensation Committee**" means the Compensation Committee of the Board as constituted from time to time or an equivalent committee of the Board;

"**Consultant**" means a Person (including an individual whose services are contracted for through another Person) with whom the Company or a Subsidiary has a written contract for services;

"**Consulting Agreement**" means, with respect to any Participant, any written consulting agreement between the Company or a Subsidiary and such Participant;

"Dividend Share Units" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 7.2 hereof;

"DSU" means a deferred share unit, which is a bookkeeping entry equivalent in value to a Share credited to a Participant's Account in accordance with Article 5 hereof;

"**DSU Agreement**" means a written notice from the Company to a Participant evidencing the grant of DSUs and the terms and conditions thereof, in such form as the Compensation Committee may approve from time to time;

"DSU Redemption Notice" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 5.3(1) hereof;

"Eligible Participants" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.3(1) hereof;

"Employment Agreement" means, with respect to any Participant, any written employment agreement between the Company or a Subsidiary and such Participant;

"Exercise Notice" means a notice in writing signed by a Participant and stating the Participant's intention to exercise or settle a particular Award, if applicable;

"Exercise Price" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.3 hereof;

"Expiry Date" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.4 hereof;

"Grant Date" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.4 hereof;

"**Incentive Stock Option**" means an Option that is designated by the Compensation Committee as an incentive stock option as described in Section 422 of the Code and otherwise meets the requirements set forth in the Plan;

"**Insider**" has the meaning attributed to "Related Person" in the NEO Exchange Listing Manual in respect of the rules governing security-based compensation arrangements, as amended from time to time;

"ISO Entity" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.3(1);

"**Market Value**" means, at any date when the market value of Shares of the Company is to be determined, the closing price of the Shares on the trading day prior to such date on the principal stock exchange on which the Shares are listed, or if the Shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange, the value as is determined solely by the Compensation Committee, acting reasonably and in good faith based on the reasonable application of a reasonable valuation method not inconsistent with Section 409A of the Code or Canadian tax law;

"NEO Exchange" means the Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc.;

"**Non-Employee Director**" means a member of the Board who is not also an employee of the Company or any Subsidiary;

"**Nonqualified Stock Option**" means an Option that is not designated by the Compensation Committee as an Incentive Stock Option;

"**Option**" means an option granted by the Company to a Participant entitling such Participant to acquire a designated number of Shares from treasury at the Exercise Price, but subject to the provisions hereof;

"**Option Agreement**" means a written notice from the Company to a Participant evidencing the grant of Options and the terms and conditions thereof, substantially in the form as the Compensation Committee may approve from time to time;

"Participants" means Eligible Participants that are granted Awards under the Plan;

"**Participant's Account**" means an account maintained to reflect each Participant's participation in RSUs, PSUs and/or DSUs under the Plan;

"**Performance Criteria**" means criteria established by the Compensation Committee which, without limitation, may include criteria based on the Participant's personal performance, the financial performance of the Company and/or of its Subsidiaries, total

shareholder return, the achievement of corporate goals and strategic initiatives, and that may be used to determine the vesting of the Awards, when applicable;

"**Performance Period**" means the period determined by the Compensation Committee pursuant to Section 6.3 hereof;

"**Person**" means an individual, corporation, company, cooperative, partnership, trust, unincorporated association, entity with juridical personality or governmental authority or body, and pronouns which refer to a Person shall have a similarly extended meaning;

"**Plan**" means this Amended and Restated Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan, as further amended and restated from time to time;

"**Proportionate Voting Shares**" means the proportionate voting shares in the capital of the Company;

"PSU" means a performance share unit awarded to a Participant to receive a payment in the form of Shares as provided in Article 6 hereof and subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan;

"PSU Agreement" means a written notice from the Company to a Participant evidencing the grant of PSUs and the terms and conditions thereof, in the form as the Compensation Committee may approve from time to time;

"**RSU**" means a restricted share unit awarded to a Participant to receive a payment in the form of Shares as provided in Article 6 hereof and subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan;

"**RSU Agreement**" means a written notice from the Company to a Participant evidencing the grant of RSUs and the terms and conditions thereof, in the form as the Compensation Committee may approve from time to time;

"SAR" means a stock appreciation right awarded to a Participant to be settled in cash as provided in Article 4 and subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan;

"SAR Agreement" means a written notice from the Company to a Participant evidencing the grant of SARs and the terms and conditions thereof, in the form as the Compensation Committee may approve from time to time;

"Share Compensation Arrangement" means a stock option, stock option plan, employee stock purchase plan, long-term incentive plan or any other compensation or incentive mechanism involving the issuance or potential issuance of Shares to one or more directors, officers, employees or Consultants of the Company or a Subsidiary. For greater certainty, a "Share Compensation Arrangement" does not include a security based compensation arrangement used as an inducement to person(s) or company(ies) not previously employed by and not previously an Insider of the Company;

"Shares" or "Stock" means the common shares in the capital of the Company;

"Share Limit" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.4(1) hereof;

"Share Unit" means a RSU or PSU, as the context requires;

"Share Unit Settlement Notice" means a notice by a Participant to the Company electing the desired form of settlement of vested RSUs or PSUs;

"Share Unit Vesting Determination Date" has the meaning described thereto in Section 6.4 hereof;

"Subsidiary" means a corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other body corporate that is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Company;

"Surrender" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.7(3);

"Surrender Notice" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.7(3);

"Tax Act" means the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) and its regulations thereunder, as amended from time to time;

"**Termination Date**" means, unless otherwise defined in the applicable Award Agreement, (i) with respect to a Participant who is an employee or officer of the Company or a Subsidiary, such Participant's last day of active employment and does not include any period of statutory, reasonable or contractual notice or any period of deemed employment or salary continuance, and (ii) with respect to a Participant who is a Consultant, the date such Consultant ceases to provide services to the Company or a Subsidiary, and "**Terminate**" and "**Terminate**" have corresponding meanings.

"Trading Day" means any day on which the NEO Exchange is opened for trading;

"transfer" includes any sale, exchange, assignment, gift, bequest, disposition, mortgage, lien, charge, pledge, encumbrance, grant of security interest or any arrangement by which possession, legal title or beneficial ownership passes from one Person to another, or to the same Person in a different capacity, whether or not voluntary and whether or not for value, and any agreement to effect any of the foregoing and "transferred", "transferring" and similar variations have corresponding meanings; and

"**U.S. Participant**" means any Participant who is a United States citizen or United States resident alien as defined for purposes of Section 7701(b)(1)(A) of the Code or for whom an Award is otherwise subject to taxation under the Code.

ARTICLE 2—PURPOSE AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN; GRANTING OF AWARDS

Section 2.1 Purpose of the Plan.

The purpose of the Plan is to advance the interests of the Company by: (i) providing Eligible Participants with additional incentives; (ii) encouraging share ownership by such Eligible Participants; (iii) increasing the proprietary interest of Eligible Participants in the success of the Company; (iv) promoting growth and profitability of the Company; (v) encouraging Eligible Participants to take into account long-term corporate performance; (vi) rewarding Eligible Participants for sustained contributions to the Company and/or significant performance achievements of the Company; and (vii) enhancing the Company's ability to attract, retain and motivate Eligible Participants.

Section 2.2 Implementation and Administration of the Plan.

- (1) The Board has delegated and appointed the Compensation Committee to implement, administer and interpret the Plan for and on behalf of the Board.
- (2) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and the rules of the NEO Exchange and applicable laws, the Compensation Committee, for and on behalf of the Board, shall have the sole and absolute discretion to: (i) designate Participants; (ii) determine the type, size, terms, and conditions of Awards to be granted; (iii) determine the method by which an Award may be settled, exercised, canceled, forfeited, or suspended; (iv) determine the circumstances under which the delivery of cash, property, or other amounts payable with respect to an Award may be deferred either automatically or at the Participant's or the Compensation Committee's election; (v) interpret and administer, reconcile any inconsistency in, correct any defect in, and supply any omission in the Plan and any Award granted under the Plan; (vi) establish, amend, suspend, or waive any rules and regulations and appoint such agents as the Compensation Committee shall deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan; (vii) accelerate the vesting, delivery, or exercisability of, or payment for or lapse of restrictions on, or waive any condition in respect of, Awards; and (viii) make any other determination and take any other action that the Compensation Committee deems necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan, to preserve the tax treatment of the Awards, preserve the economic equivalent value of the Awards or to comply with any applicable law.
- (3) No member of the Board and no officer or employee acting for and on behalf of the Board will be liable for any action or determination taken or made in good faith in the administration, interpretation, construction or application of the Plan, any Award Agreement or other document or any Awards granted pursuant to the Plan.
- (4) The day-to-day administration of the Plan may be delegated to such officers and employees of the Company as the Compensation Committee determines.
- (5) Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan, all designations, determinations, interpretations, and other decisions regarding the Plan or any Award or any documents evidencing any Award granted pursuant to the Plan shall be within the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee, may be made at any time, and shall be final, conclusive, and binding upon all persons or entities, including, without limitation, the Company, any Subsidiary, any Participant, any holder or beneficiary of any Award, and any shareholder of the Company.

Section 2.3 Eligible Participants.

- (1) The Persons who shall be eligible to receive Nonqualified Stock Options, SARs, RSUs, DSUs and PSUs shall be the directors, officers, employees or Consultants of or to the Company or a Subsidiary, providing ongoing services to the Company and/or its Subsidiaries (collectively, "Eligible Participants"). Incentive Stock Options shall be granted only to Eligible Participants who are employees of the Company or any of the Company's present or future parent or subsidiaries, as defined in Section 424(e) or (f) of the Code, or other affiliates the employees of which are eligible to receive Incentive Stock Options under the Code (each an "ISO Entity").
- (2) Participation in the Plan shall be entirely voluntary and may be declined.

(3) Notwithstanding any express or implied term of the Plan to the contrary, the granting of an Award pursuant to the Plan shall in no way be construed as a guarantee of employment or appointment by the Company or a Subsidiary.

Section 2.4 Shares Subject to the Plan.

- (1) Subject to adjustment pursuant to provisions of Article 8 hereof, the total number of Shares reserved and available for grant and issuance pursuant to Awards under the Plan shall not exceed 35,000,000 Shares or such other number as may be approved in accordance with the NEO Exchange policies and the shareholders of the Company from time to time (the "**Share Limit**"); provided that no more than 21,609,243 Shares may be issued in the aggregate pursuant to the exercise of Incentive Stock Options granted under the Plan.
- (2) For greater certainty, any issuance from treasury by the Company either: (i) under any other proposed or established Share Compensation Arrangement or (ii) that is or was issued in reliance upon an exemption under applicable stock exchange rules applicable to security based compensation arrangements used as an inducement to person(s) or company(ies) not previously employed by and not previously an Insider of the Company, shall not be included in determining the maximum Shares reserved and available for grant and issuance under Section 2.4(1).
- (3) Shares in respect of (a) an Award that is not exercised, vested or settled prior to the termination of such Award due to the expiration, termination, cancellation or lapse of such Award, and (b) an Award that is settled in cash in lieu of settlement in Shares, shall, in each case, be available for Awards to be granted thereafter pursuant to the provisions of the Plan; *provided, however*, that in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the forgoing shall be subject to any limitations under the Code. All Shares issued from treasury pursuant to the exercise or the vesting of the Awards granted under the Plan shall be so issued as fully paid and non-assessable Shares.

Section 2.5 Participation Limits.

- (1) Subject to adjustment pursuant to provisions of Article 8 hereof, the aggregate number of Shares (i) issued to Insiders under the Plan or any other proposed or established Share Compensation Arrangement within any one-year period and (ii) issuable to Insiders at any time under the Plan or any other proposed or established Share Compensation Arrangement, shall in each case not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total issued and outstanding Shares (assuming the conversion of all issued and outstanding Proportionate Voting Shares to Shares) subject to the Plan from time to time. Any Awards granted pursuant to the Plan, prior to the Participant becoming an Insider, shall be excluded for the purposes of the limits set out in this Section 2.5(1).
- (2) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, the value of all Awards awarded under this Plan and all other cash compensation paid by the Company to any Non-Employee Director (excluding any incremental fees paid to such Non-Employee Director for service as Lead Independent Director or Non-Executive Chair (if applicable)) in any calendar year shall not exceed \$600,000. For purposes of this limitation, the value of any Award shall be its grant date fair value, as determined by methodology consistent with that used in determining the Non-Employee Director compensation in the annual proxy statement.

ARTICLE 3—OPTIONS

Section 3.1 Nature of Options.

An Option is an option granted by the Company to a Participant entitling such Participant to acquire a designated number of Shares from treasury at the Exercise Price, subject to the provisions hereof. Eligible Participants may be eligible to receive Nonqualified Stock Options and/or Incentive Stock Options as outlined in this Article 3. All Options granted under the Plan shall be Nonqualified Stock Options unless the applicable Award Agreement expressly states that the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option.

Section 3.2 Option Awards.

- (1) The Compensation Committee shall, from time to time, in its sole discretion, (i) designate the Eligible Participants who may receive Options under the Plan, (ii) determine the number of Options, if any, to be granted to each Eligible Participant and the date or dates on which such Options shall be granted, (iii) determine the price per Share to be payable upon the exercise of each such Option (the "Exercise Price"), (iv) determine the relevant vesting provisions (including Performance Criteria, if applicable) and (v) determine the Expiry Date, the whole subject to the terms and conditions prescribed in the Plan, in any Award Agreement and any applicable rules of the NEO Exchange.
- (2) All Options granted herein shall vest in accordance with the terms of the Award Agreement entered into in respect of such Options.

Section 3.3 Exercise Price.

The Exercise Price for Shares that are the subject of any Option shall be fixed by the Compensation Committee when such Option is granted, but shall not be less than the Market Value of such Shares at the time of the grant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an employee who, at the time of the grant of such Option, owns stock representing more than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any, the Exercise Price per share shall be no less than one hundred ten percent (110%) of the Market Value per share on the Grant Date.

Section 3.4 Expiry Date; Blackout Period.

Subject to Section 8.2, each Option must be exercised no later than ten (10) years after the date the Option (the "**Grant Date**") is granted or such shorter period as set out in the Participant's Award Agreement, at which time such Option will expire (the "**Expiry Date**"). Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, each Option that would expire during or within ten (10) Business Days immediately following a Black-Out Period shall expire on the date that is ten (10) Business Days immediately following the expiration of the Black-Out Period. Where an Option will expire on a date that falls immediately after a Black-Out Period, and for greater certainty, not later than ten (10) Business Days after the Black-Out Period, then the date such Option will expire will be automatically extended by such number of days equal to ten (10) Business Days less the number of Business Days after the Black-Out Period that the Option expires. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Expiry Period exceed five (5) years from the Grant Date in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an employee who on the Grant Date owns stock representing more than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or an ISO Entity.

Section 3.5 Option Agreement.

Each Option must be confirmed by an Award Agreement. The Award Agreement shall contain such terms that the Company deems necessary and appropriate and to comply with applicable law.

Section 3.6 Exercise of Options.

- (1) Subject to the provisions of the Plan, a Participant shall be entitled to exercise an Option granted to such Participant, subject to vesting limitations which may be imposed by the Compensation Committee at the time such Option is granted and set out in the Award Agreement.
- (2) Prior to its expiration or earlier termination in accordance with the Plan, each Option shall be exercisable as to all or such part or parts of the optioned Shares and at such time or times and/or pursuant to the achievement of such Performance Criteria and/or other vesting conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine in its sole discretion.
- (3) No fractional Shares will be issued upon the exercise of Options granted under the Plan and, accordingly, if a Participant would become entitled to a fractional Share upon the exercise of an Option, or from an adjustment pursuant to Section 8.1, such Participant will only have the right to acquire the next lowest whole number of Shares and will (except in the case of a Participant who is a resident of Canada or employed in Canada (each for purposes of the Tax Act)) receive a cash payment equal to the in-the-money value, if any, of such fractional Shares. In respect of a Participant who is a resident of Canada or employed in Canada (each for purposes of the Tax Act), such fractional Shares shall be forfeited without further compensation once an Option has been exercised for the full whole number of Shares subject to such Option.

Section 3.7 Method of Exercise and Payment of Purchase Price.

- (1) Subject to the provisions of the Plan and the alternative exercise procedures set out herein, an Option granted under the Plan may be exercisable (from time to time as provided in Section 3.6 hereof) by the Participant (or by the liquidator, executor or administrator, as the case may be, of the estate of the Participant) by delivering an exercise notice substantially in the form to be attached as a schedule to the Award Agreement (an "Exercise Notice") to the Company in the form and manner determined by the Compensation Committee from time to time, together with a bank draft, certified cheque or other form of payment acceptable to the Company in an amount equal to the aggregate Exercise Price of the Shares to be purchased pursuant to the exercise of the Options and any applicable tax withholdings.
- (2) Pursuant to the Exercise Notice and subject to the approval of the Compensation Committee, a Participant may choose to undertake a "cashless exercise" with the assistance of a broker (the "**Broker**") in order to facilitate the exercise of such Participant's Options. The "cashless exercise" procedure may include a sale of such number of Shares as is necessary to raise an amount equal to the aggregate Exercise Price for all Options being exercised by that Participant under an Exercise Notice and any applicable tax withholdings. Pursuant to the Exercise Notice, the Participant may authorize the broker to sell Shares on the open market by means of a short sale and forward the proceeds of such short sale to the Company to satisfy the Exercise Price and any applicable tax withholdings, promptly following which the Company shall issue the Shares underlying the number of Options as provided for in the Exercise Notice.

(3) In addition, in lieu of exercising any vested Option in the manner described in this Section 3.7(1) or Section 3.7(2), and pursuant to the terms of this Section 3.7(3), a Participant may, by surrendering an Option ("**Surrender**") with a properly endorsed notice of Surrender to the Corporate Secretary of the Company, substantially in the form to be attached as a schedule to the Award Agreement (a "**Surrender Notice**"), elect to receive that number of Shares calculated using the following formula, subject to acceptance of such Surrender Notice by the Compensation Committee and provided that arrangements satisfactory to the Company have been made to pay any applicable withholding taxes:

X = (Y * (A-B)) / A

Where:

X = the number of Shares to be issued to the Participant upon exercising such Options; provided that if the foregoing calculation results in a negative number, then no Shares shall be issued

Y = the number of Shares underlying the Options to be Surrendered

A = the Market Value of the Shares as at the date of the Surrender

B = the Exercise Price of such Options

- (4) No share certificates shall be issued and no person shall be registered in the share register of the Company as the holder of Shares until actual receipt by the Company of an Exercise Notice, payment for the Shares to be purchased and satisfaction of any tax withholding requirements.
- (5) Subject to Section 3.7(4), upon the exercise of an Option pursuant to Section 3.7(1), Section 3.7(2) or Section 3.7(3), the Company shall, as soon as practicable after such exercise but no later than ten (10) Business Days following such exercise, forthwith cause the transfer agent and registrar of the Shares to deliver to the Participant (or as the Participant may otherwise direct) such number of Shares as the Participant shall have then paid for and as are specified in such Exercise Notice.

Section 3.8 Termination of Employment or Service.

- (1) Subject to the provisions of the Plan, a Participant's Options shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Participant's Award Agreement, as the case may be, in respect of such Participant's ceasing to be an Eligible Participant.
- (2) For the avoidance of doubt, subject to applicable laws, no period of notice, if any, or payment instead of notice that is given or that ought to have been given under applicable law, whether by statute, imposed by a court or otherwise, in respect of such termination of employment that follows or is in respect of a period after the Participant's Termination Date will be considered as extending the Participant's period of employment for the purposes of determining his or her entitlement under the Plan.
- (3) The Participant shall have no entitlement to damages or other compensation arising from or related to not receiving any awards that would have settled or vested or accrued to the Participant after the Termination Date.

Section 3.9 Incentive Stock Options

- (1) No Option shall be treated as an Incentive Stock Option unless the Plan has been approved by the shareholders of the Company in a manner intended to comply with the shareholder approval requirements of Section 422(b)(1) of the Code; *provided, however*, that any Option intended to be an Incentive Stock Option shall not fail to be effective solely on account of a failure to obtain such approval, but rather such Option shall be treated as a Nonqualified Stock Option unless and until such approval is obtained. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the terms and conditions of such grant shall be subject to and comply with such rules as may be prescribed by Section 422 of the Code. If for any reason an Option intended to be an Incentive Stock Option (or any portion thereof) shall not qualify as an Incentive Stock Option, then, to the extent of such nonqualification, such Option or portion thereof shall be regarded as a Nonqualified Stock Option appropriately granted under the Plan.
- (2) No Incentive Stock Option may be granted more than ten (10) years from the date the Plan is adopted, or the date the Plan is approved by the shareholders, whichever is earlier.
- (3) Each Participant awarded an Incentive Stock Option under the Plan shall notify the Company in writing immediately after the date he or she makes a disqualifying disposition of any Shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of such Incentive Stock Option. A disqualifying disposition is any disposition (including, without limitation, any sale) of such Shares before the later of (i) two (2) years after the Grant Date of the Incentive Stock Option or (ii) one (1) year after the date of exercise of the Incentive Stock Option. The Company may, if determined by the Compensation Committee and in accordance with procedures established by the Compensation Committee, retain possession, as agent for the applicable Participant, of any Shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option until the end of the period described in the preceding sentence, subject to complying with any instructions from such Participant as to the sale of such Shares.
- (4) To the extent that a Participant has received Incentive Stock Options and that any of the more general language in this Article 3 conflicts with the language in this Section 3.9, the language of Section 3.9 shall be controlling.

Article 4—STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

Section 4.1 Nature of SARs

A SAR is stock appreciate right granted to a Participant representing the right to receive, subject to restrictions and conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine at the time of grant, a cash payment or Shares in lieu of cash having an aggregate value equal to the product of (i) the excess of (A) the Market Value on the exercise date of one Share divided by (B) the base price per Share specified in the Award Agreement, multiplied by (ii) the number of Shares specified by the SAR, or the portion thereof, that is exercised. The base price per Share specified in the Award Agreement ball not be less than the Market Value on the date of grant.

Section 4.2 SAR Awards

Each SAR must be confirmed by an Award Agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each SAR and may include, without limitation, whether the SAR is

settled in cash or Shares, the vesting, expiry and base price per Share of the SAR and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the SAR will comply with any provisions respecting SARs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company. If, upon the exercise of a SAR, a Participant is to receive a portion of such payment in Shares, the number of Shares shall be determined by dividing such portion by the Market Value on the exercise date. No fractional Shares will be issued upon the exercise of a SAR granted under the Plan and, accordingly, if a Participant would become entitled to a fractional Share upon the exercise of a SAR, or from an adjustment pursuant to Section 8.1, such Participant will only have the right to acquire the next lowest whole number of Shares and will receive a cash payment in lieu of such fractional Shares.

Section 4.3 Exercise of SARs

SARs shall be exercisable at such time or times and subject to such terms and conditions as shall be determined by the Compensation Committee as set out in the Participant's Award Agreement; provided, however, that SARs granted under the Plan may not have a term in excess of ten years' duration unless required otherwise by applicable law.

ARTICLE 5—DEFERRED SHARE UNITS

Section 5.1 Nature of DSUs.

A DSU is a unit granted to a Participant representing the right to receive a Share or the Cash Equivalent, subject to restrictions and conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine at the time of grant. Conditions may be based on continuing service of the Participant and/or achievement of pre-established vesting and objectives.

Section 5.2 DSU Awards.

- (1) Subject to the provisions herein set forth and any shareholder or regulatory approval which may be required, the Compensation Committee shall, from time to time, in its sole discretion, (i) designate the Eligible Participants who may receive DSUs under the Plan, (ii) fix the number of DSUs, if any, to be granted to each Eligible Participant and the date or dates on which such DSUs shall be granted, and (iii) determine the relevant conditions and vesting provisions (including, any applicable Performance Periods and Performance Criteria), the whole subject to the terms and conditions prescribed in the Plan and in any Award Agreement, as applicable.
- (2) Each DSU must be confirmed by an Award Agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each DSU and may include, without limitation, the vesting and terms of the DSUs and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the DSU will comply with any provisions respecting DSUs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company.
- (3) Any DSUs that are awarded to a Participant who is a resident of Canada or employed in Canada (each for purposes of the Tax Act) shall be structured so as to be considered to be a plan described in section 7 of the Tax Act or to meet requirements of paragraph

6801(d) of the Income Tax Regulations adopted under the Tax Act (or any successor to such provisions).

(4) Subject to vesting and other conditions and provisions set forth herein and in the Award Agreement, the Compensation Committee shall determine whether each DSU awarded to a Participant shall entitle the Participant: (i) to receive one Share issued from treasury; (ii) to receive the Cash Equivalent of one Share; or (iii) to elect to receive either one Share from treasury, the Cash Equivalent of one Share or a combination of cash and Shares.

Section 5.3 Redemption of DSUs.

- (1) Subject to Section 5.3(2), each Participant that has been awarded DSUs shall be entitled to redeem his or her DSUs during the period commencing on the Business Day immediately following the Termination Date and ending on the date that is not later than December 15 of the year following the Termination Date, or a shorter such redemption period set out in the relevant Award Agreement, by providing a written notice of settlement to the Company setting out the number of DSUs to be settled and the particulars regarding the registration of the Shares issuable upon settlement, if applicable (the "DSU Redemption Notice"). In the event of the death of a Participant, the Notice of Redemption shall be filed by the administrator or liquidator of the estate of the Participant.
- (2) If a DSU Redemption Notice is not received by the Company on or before the 90th day following the Termination Date, the Participant shall be deemed to have delivered a DSU Redemption Notice on the 90th day following the Termination Date and the Compensation Committee shall determine the number of DSUs to be settled by way of Shares, the Cash Equivalent or a combination of Shares and the Cash Equivalent and delivered to the Participant, administrator or liquidator of the estate of the Participant, as applicable.
- (3) Subject to Section 9.4 and the Award Agreement, settlement of DSUs shall take place promptly following the Company's receipt or deemed receipt of the DSU Redemption Notice through:
 - (a) in the case of settlement DSUs for their Cash Equivalent, delivery of bank draft, certified cheque or other acceptable form of payment to the Participant representing the Cash Equivalent;
 - (b) in the case of settlement of DSUs for Shares, delivery of a Share to the Participant; or
 - (c) in the case of settlement of DSUs for a combination of Shares and the Cash Equivalent, a combination of (a) and (b) above.

ARTICLE 6—SHARE UNITS

Section 6.1 Nature of Share Units.

A Share Unit is an award that is either a PSU or RSU entitling the recipient to acquire Shares, at such purchase price (which may be zero) as determined by the Compensation Committee, subject to such restrictions and conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine at the time of grant. Conditions may be based on continuing employment (or other service relationship) and/or achievement of pre-established performance goals and objectives.

Section 6.2 Share Unit Awards.

- (1) Subject to the provisions herein set forth and any shareholder or regulatory approval which may be required, the Compensation Committee shall, from time to time, in its sole discretion, (i) designate the Eligible Participants who may receive RSUs and/or PSUs under the Plan, (ii) fix the number of RSUs and/or PSUs, if any, to be granted to each Eligible Participant and the date or dates on which such RSUs and/or PSUs shall be granted, and (iii) determine the relevant conditions and vesting provisions (including, in the case of PSUs, the applicable Performance Period and Performance Criteria, if any) and Restriction Period of such RSUs and/or PSUs, the whole subject to the terms and conditions prescribed in the Plan and in any Award Agreement.
- (2) Each RSU must be confirmed by an Award Agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each RSU and may include, without limitation, the vesting and terms of the RSUs and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the RSUs will comply with any provisions respecting RSUs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company.
- (3) Each PSU must be confirmed by an Award Agreement that sets forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each PSU and may include, without limitation, the applicable Performance Period and Performance Criteria, vesting and terms of the PSUs and the provisions applicable in the event employment or service terminates, and shall contain such terms that may be considered necessary in order that the PSUs will comply with any provisions respecting PSUs in the income tax or other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which the Participant may from time to time be a resident or citizen or the rules of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company.
- (4) Any RSUs or PSUs that are awarded to an Eligible Participant who is a resident of Canada or employed in Canada (each for purposes of the Tax Act) shall be structured so as to be considered to be a plan described in section 7 of the Tax Act or in such other manner to ensure that such award is not a "salary deferral arrangement" as defined in the Tax Act (or any successor to such provisions).
- (5) Subject to the vesting and other conditions and provisions set forth herein and in the Award Agreement, the Compensation Committee shall determine whether each RSU and/or PSU awarded to a Participant shall entitle the Participant: (i) to receive one Share issued from treasury; (ii) to receive the Cash Equivalent of one Share; or (iii) to elect to receive either one Share from treasury, the Cash Equivalent of one Share or a combination of cash and Shares.

Section 6.3 Performance Criteria and Performance Period Applicable to PSU Awards.

(1) For each award of PSUs, the Compensation Committee shall establish the period in which any Performance Criteria and other vesting conditions must be met in order for a Participant to be entitled to receive Shares in exchange for all or a portion of the PSUs held by such Participant (the "**Performance Period**").

(2) For each award of PSUs, the Compensation Committee shall establish any Performance Criteria and other vesting conditions in order for a Participant to be entitled to receive Shares in exchange for his or her PSUs.

Section 6.4 Share Unit Vesting Determination Date.

The vesting determination date means the date on which the Compensation Committee determines if the Performance Criteria and/or other vesting conditions with respect to a RSU and/or PSU have been met (the "**Share Unit Vesting Determination Date**"), and as a result, establishes the number of RSUs and/or PSUs that become vested, if any.

ARTICLE 7—GENERAL CONDITIONS

Section 7.1 General Conditions applicable to Awards.

Each Award, as applicable, shall be subject to the following conditions:

- (1) **Employment or Service** The granting of an Award to a Participant shall not impose upon the Company or a Subsidiary any obligation to retain the Participant in its employ or consultancy in any capacity. For greater certainty, the granting of Awards to a Participant shall not impose any obligation on the Company to grant any awards in the future nor shall it entitle the Participant to receive future grants.
- (2) Rights as a Shareholder Neither the Participant nor such Participant's personal representatives or legatees shall have any rights whatsoever as shareholder in respect of any Shares covered by such Participant's Awards until the date of issuance of a share certificate to such Participant (or to the liquidator, executor or administrator, as the case may be, of the estate of the Participant) or the entry of such person's name on the share register for the Shares. Without in any way limiting the generality of the foregoing, no adjustment shall be made for dividends or other rights for which the record date is prior to the date such share certificate is issued or entry of such person's name on the share register for the Shares.
- (3) **Other Forfeitures** Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan or any Award Agreement, all unvested Awards held by a Participant shall be forfeited and shall be of no further value whatsoever if such Participant fails to comply with the terms of any confidentiality, non-competition, non-disclosure, non-disparagement or non-solicitation restriction relating to the Company or its Affiliates, as the case may be, contained in any agreement entered into between such Participant and the Company and/or any Affiliate (including, without limitation, any Award Agreement), whether or not such restriction is deemed enforceable or unenforceable.
- (4) Conformity to Plan In the event that an Award is granted or an Award Agreement is executed which does not conform in all particulars with the provisions of the Plan, or purports to grant Awards on terms different from those set out in the Plan, the Award or the grant of such Award shall not be in any way void or invalidated, but the Award so granted will be adjusted to become, in all respects, in conformity with the Plan.
- (5) **Non-Transferability** Except as set forth herein, Awards are not transferable. Awards may be exercised only by:
 - (a) the Participant to whom the Awards were granted;

- (b) with the Compensation Committee's prior written approval and subject to such conditions as the Compensation Committee may stipulate, such Participant's family or retirement savings trust;
- (c) upon the Participant's death, by the legal representative of the Participant's estate; or
- (d) upon the Participant's incapacity, the legal representative having authority to deal with the property of the Participant;

provided that any such legal representative shall first deliver evidence satisfactory to the Company of entitlement to exercise any Award. A person exercising an Award may subscribe for Shares only in the person's own name or in the person's capacity as a legal representative. Under no circumstances may Incentive Stock Option awards be transferred by a Participant.

Section 7.2 Dividend Share Units.

When dividends (other than stock dividends) are paid on Shares, Participants may, subject to the terms and conditions set out in a Participant's Award Agreement, receive additional SARs, DSUs, RSUs and/or PSUs, as applicable ("**Dividend Share Units**") as of the dividend payment date. The number of Dividend Share Units to be granted to the Participant, if any shall be determined by multiplying the aggregate number of SARs, DSUs, RSUs and/or PSUs, as applicable, held by the Participant on the relevant record date by the amount of the dividend payment date, which Dividend Share Units shall be in the form of SARs, DSUs, RSUs and/or PSUs, as applicable. Dividend Share Units shall be in the form of SARs, DSUs, RSUs and/or PSUs, as applicable. Dividend Share Units granted to a Participant in accordance with this Section 7.2 shall be subject to the same vesting conditions applicable to the related SARs, DSUs, RSUs and/or PSUs in accordance with the respective Award Agreement. If and to the extent that the Dividend Share Units are settled in Shares, such Dividend Share Units shall be counted towards the Share Limit.

Section 7.3 Unfunded Plan.

Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee, the Plan shall be unfunded. To the extent any Participant or his or her estate holds any rights by virtue of a grant of Awards under the Plan, such rights (unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee) shall be no greater than the rights of an unsecured creditor of the Company.

ARTICLE 8—ADJUSTMENTS AND AMENDMENTS

Section 8.1 Adjustment to Shares Subject to Outstanding Awards.

(1) In the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or exchange of Shares, merger, consolidation, spin-off or other distribution (other than normal cash dividends) of the Company's assets to shareholders, or any other change in the Shares, the Compensation Committee will make such proportionate adjustments, if any, as the Compensation Committee in its discretion, subject to regulatory approval, may deem appropriate to reflect such change (for the purpose of preserving the value of the Awards), with respect to (i) the number or kind of Shares or other securities reserved for issuance pursuant to the Plan; and (ii) the number or kind of Shares or other securities subject to unexercised Awards previously granted and the exercise price of those

Awards provided, however, that no substitution or adjustment will obligate the Company to issue or sell fractional Shares. The existence of any Awards does not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or an Affiliate or any of their respective shareholders to make, authorize or determine any adjustment, recapitalization, reorganization or any other change in the capital structure or the business of, or any amalgamation, merger or consolidation involving, to create or issue any bonds, debentures, shares or other securities of, or to determine the rights and conditions attaching thereto, to effect the dissolution or liquidation of or any sale or transfer of all or any part of the assets or the business of, or to effect any other corporate act or proceeding relating to, whether of a similar character or otherwise, the Company or such Affiliate, whether or not any such action would have an adverse effect on the Plan or any Award granted hereunder. Awards issued in connection with the assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding options intended to qualify as "incentive stock options" within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code shall be counted against the aggregate number of shares of Shares available for Awards of Incentive Stock Options under the Plan. Any adjustment in Incentive Stock Options under this Article 7 (other than any cancellation of Incentive Stock Options) shall be made only to the extent not constituting a "modification" within the meaning of Section 424(h)(3) of the Code.

Section 8.2 Amendment or Discontinuance of the Plan.

- (1) The Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time or from time to time and/or amend or revise the terms of the Plan or of any Award granted under the Plan and any agreement relating thereto, provided that such suspension, termination, amendment, or revision shall:
 - (a) not adversely alter or impair any Award previously granted except as permitted by the terms of the Plan or upon the consent of the applicable Participant(s); and
 - (b) be in compliance with applicable law, applicable NEO Exchange policies (or any other stock exchange upon which the Company has applied to list its Shares) and with the prior approval, if required, of the shareholders of the Company.
- (2) If the Plan is terminated, the provisions of the Plan and any administrative guidelines and other rules and regulations adopted by the Compensation Committee and in force on the date of termination will continue in effect as long as any Award or any rights awarded or granted under the Plan remain outstanding and, notwithstanding the termination of the Plan, the Compensation Committee will have the ability to make such amendments to the Plan or the Awards as they would have been entitled to make if the Plan were still in effect.
- (3) The Compensation Committee may from time to time, in its discretion and without the approval of shareholders, make changes to the Plan or any Award that do not require the approval of shareholders under Section 8.2(1) which may include but are not limited to:
 - (a) a change to the vesting provisions of any Award granted under the Plan;
 - (b) a change to the provisions governing the effect of termination of a Participant's employment, contract or office;

- (c) a change to accelerate the date on which any Award may be exercised under the Plan;
- (d) an amendment of the Plan or an Award as necessary to comply with applicable law or the requirements of any exchange upon which the securities of the Company are then listed or any other regulatory body having authority over the Company, the Plan, the Participants or the shareholders of the Company;
- (e) any amendment of a "housekeeping" nature, including without limitation those made to clarify the meaning of an existing provision of the Plan or any agreement, correct or supplement any provision of the Plan that is inconsistent with any other provision of the Plan or any agreement, correct any grammatical or typographical errors or amend the definitions in the Plan regarding administration of the Plan; or
- (f) any amendment regarding the administration of the Plan.
- (4) Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of the Plan, shareholder approval is required for the following amendments to the Plan:
 - (a) Any amendment which would permit Awards granted under the Plan to be transferable or assignable other than for normal estate settlement purposes;
 - (b) any increase in the maximum number of Shares that may be issuable from treasury pursuant to awards granted under the Plan, other than an adjustment pursuant to Section 8.1;
 - (c) any reduction in the exercise price of an Award benefitting an Insider, except in the case of an adjustment pursuant to Section 8.1;
 - (d) any extension of the Expiry Date of an Award benefitting an Insider, except in case of an extension due to a black-out period;
 - (a) any extension of the Expiry Date of an Award where the exercise price is lower than the market price, except in case of an extension due to a black-out period;
 - (b) any amendment to remove or to exceed the Insider participation limit set out in Section 2.5(1); and
 - (e) any amendment to Section 8.2(3) or Section 8.2(4) of the Plan, as amended by the Addendum for U.S. Participants.

Section 8.3 Change of Control.

(1) Despite any other provision of the Plan and subject to any Award Agreement, in the event of a Change of Control, all unvested Awards then outstanding will, as applicable, be substituted by or replaced with awards of the surviving corporation (or any Affiliate thereof) or the potential successor (or any Affiliate thereto) (the "**continuing entity**") on the same terms and conditions as the original Awards, subject to appropriate adjustments that do not materially diminish the value of the original Awards.

- (2) No fractional Shares or other security will be issued upon the exercise of any Award and accordingly, if as a result of a Change of Control, a Participant would become entitled to a fractional Share or other security, such participant will have the right to acquire only the next lowest whole number of Shares or other security and no payment or other adjustment will be made with respect to the fractional interest so disregarded.
- (3) In the event of a potential Change of Control, the vesting terms of Awards shall be subject to the Participant's Award Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, despite anything else to the contrary in the Plan, in the event of a potential Change of Control the Compensation Committee will have the power, in its sole discretion, to modify the terms of the Plan and/or the Awards to assist the Participants in tendering to a take-over bid or other transaction leading to a Change of Control. For greater certainty, in the event of a take-over bid or other transaction leading to a Change of Control, the Compensation Committee has the power, in its sole discretion, to accelerate the vesting of Awards and to permit Participants to conditionally exercise their Awards, such conditional exercise to be conditional upon the take-up by such offeror of the Shares or other securities tendered to such take-over bid in accordance with the terms of the takeover bid (or the effectiveness of such other transaction leading to a Change of Control). If, however, the potential Change of Control referred to in this Section 8.3(3) is not completed within the time specified (as the same may be extended), then despite this Section 8.3(3) or the definition of "Change of Control", (i) any conditional exercise of vested Awards will be deemed to be null, void and of no effect, and such conditionally exercised Awards will for all purposes be deemed not to have been exercised, and (ii) Awards which vested pursuant to this Section 8.3(3) will be returned by the Participant to the Company and reinstated as authorized but unissued Shares and the original terms applicable to such Awards will be reinstated.
- (4) If the Compensation Committee has, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.3(3) permitted the conditional exercise of Awards in connection with a potential Change of Control, then the Compensation Committee will have the power, in its sole discretion, to terminate, immediately following actual completion of such Change of Control and on such terms as it sees fit, any Awards not exercised (including all vested and unvested Awards).

ARTICLE 9—MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.1 Currency.

Unless otherwise specifically provided, all references to dollars in the Plan are references to U.S. dollars.

Section 9.2 Compliance and Award Restrictions.

(1) The Company's obligation to issue and deliver Shares under any Award is subject to: (i) the completion of such registration or other qualification of such Shares or obtaining approval of such regulatory authority as the Company shall determine to be necessary or advisable in connection with the authorization, issuance or sale thereof; (ii) the admission of such Shares to listing on any stock exchange on which such Shares may then be listed; and (iii) the receipt from the Participant of such representations, agreements and undertakings as to future dealings in such Shares as the Company determines to be necessary or advisable in order to safeguard against the violation of

the securities laws of any jurisdiction. The Company shall take all commercially reasonable steps to obtain such approvals, registrations and qualifications as may be necessary for the issuance of such Shares in compliance with applicable securities laws and for the listing of such Shares on any stock exchange on which such Shares are then listed.

- (2) The Participant agrees to fully cooperate with the Company in doing all such things, including executing and delivering all such agreements, undertakings or other documents or furnishing all such information as is reasonably necessary to facilitate compliance by the Company with such laws, rule and requirements, including all tax withholding and remittance obligations.
- (3) No Awards will be granted where such grant is restricted pursuant to the terms of any trading policies or other restrictions imposed by the Company.
- (4) The Company is not obliged by any provision of the Plan or the grant of any Award under the Plan to issue or sell Shares if, in the opinion of the Compensation Committee, such action would constitute a violation by the Company or a Participant of any laws, rules and regulations or any condition of such approvals.
- (5) If Shares cannot be issued to a Participant upon the exercise or settlement of an Award due to legal or regulatory restrictions, the obligation of the Company to issue such Shares will terminate and, if applicable, any funds paid to the Company in connection with the exercise of any Options will be returned to the applicable Participant as soon as practicable.
- (6) At the time a Participant ceased to hold Awards which are or may become exercisable, the Participant ceases to be a Participant.
- (7) Nothing contained herein will prevent the Compensation Committee from adopting other or additional Share Compensation Arrangements for the benefit of any Participant or any other Person, subject to any required regulatory, shareholder or other approval.

Section 9.3 Use of an Administrative Agent and Trustee.

The Compensation Committee may in its sole discretion appoint from time to time one or more entities to act as administrative agent to administer the Awards granted under the Plan and to act as trustee to hold and administer the assets that may be held in respect of Awards granted under the Plan, the whole in accordance with the terms and conditions determined by the Compensation Committee in its sole discretion. The Company and the administrative agent will maintain records showing the number of Awards granted to each Participant under the Plan.

Section 9.4 Tax Withholding.

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, all distributions, delivery of Shares or payments to a Participant (or to the liquidator, executor or administrator, as the case may be, of the estate of the Participant) under the Plan shall be made net of applicable source deductions. If the event giving rise to the withholding obligation involves an issuance or delivery of Shares, then with the Compensation Committee's approval, the withholding obligation may be satisfied by (a) having the Participant elect to have the appropriate number of such Shares sold by the Company, the Company's transfer agent and registrar or any trustee appointed by the Company, on behalf of and as agent for the Participant as soon as permissible and practicable, with the proceeds of such sale being

delivered to the Company, which will in turn remit such amounts to the appropriate governmental authorities, or (b) any other mechanism as may be required or appropriate to conform with local tax and other rules. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the Company shall not be required to issue any Shares or make payments under this Plan until arrangements satisfactory to the Company have been made for payment of all applicable withholdings obligations.

- (2) The sale of Shares by the Company, or by a Broker, under Section 9.4(1) or under any other provision of the Plan will be made on the NEO Exchange or any other recognized exchange on which the Company's Shares are traded. The Participant consents to such sale and grants to the Company an irrevocable power of attorney to effect the sale of such Shares on his behalf and acknowledges and agrees that (i) the number of Shares sold will be, at a minimum, sufficient to fund the withholding obligations net of all selling costs, which costs are the responsibility of the Participant and which the Participant hereby authorizes to be deducted from the proceeds of such sale; (ii) in effecting the sale of any such Shares, the Company or the Broker will exercise its sole judgment as to the timing and the manner of sale and will not be obligated to seek or obtain a minimum price; and (iii) neither the Company nor the Broker will be liable for any loss arising out of such sale of the Shares including any loss relating to the pricing, manner or timing of the sales or any delay in transferring any Shares to a Participant or otherwise.
- (3) The Participant further acknowledges that the sale price of the Shares will fluctuate with the market price of the Shares and no assurance can be given that any particular price will be received upon any sale. The Company makes no representation or warranty as to the future market value of the Shares or with respect to any income tax matters affecting the participant resulting from the grant or exercise of an Awards and/or transactions in the Shares. Neither the Company, nor any of its directors, officers, employees, shareholders or agents will be liable for anything done or omitted to be done by such person or any other person with respect to the price, time, quantity or other conditions and circumstances of the issuance of Shares under the Plan, with respect to any fluctuations in the market price of Shares or in any other manner related to the Plan.
- (4) Notwithstanding the first paragraph of this Section 9.4, the applicable tax withholdings may be waived where the Participant directs in writing that a payment be made directly to the Participant's registered retirement savings plan in circumstances to which regulation 100(3) of the regulations of the Tax Act apply.

Section 9.5 Reorganization of the Company.

The existence of any Awards shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its shareholders to make or authorize any adjustment, recapitalization, reorganization or other change in the Company's capital structure or its business, or any amalgamation, combination, merger or consolidation involving the Company or to create or issue any bonds, debentures, shares or other securities of the Company or the rights and conditions attaching thereto or to affect the dissolution or liquidation of the Company or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar nature or otherwise.

Section 9.6 Governing Laws.

The Plan and all matters to which reference is made herein shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of New York and the federal laws of the United States of America applicable therein.

Section 9.7 Successors and Assigns.

The Plan shall be binding on all successors and assigns of the Company and a Participant, including without limitation, the personal legal representatives of a Participant, or any receiver or trustee in bankruptcy or representative of the Company's or Participant's creditors.

Section 9.8 Severability.

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of the Plan shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision and any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be severed from the Plan.

Section 9.9 No liability.

No member of the Board, Compensation Committee or officer of the Company shall be liable for any action or determination taken or made in good faith in the administration, interpretation, construction or application of the Plan or any Award granted hereunder.

Section 9.10 Effective Date of the Plan.

The Plan was approved by the Compensation Committee for and on behalf of the Board and shall take effect on April 26, 2019, as amended and restated this June 1, 2021.

ADDENDUM FOR U.S. PARTICIPANTS COLUMBIA CARE INC. OMNIBUS LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

The provisions of this Addendum apply to Awards held by a U.S. Participant. All capitalized terms used in this Addendum but not defined in Section 1 below have the meanings attributed to them in the Plan. The Section references set forth below match the Section references in the Plan. This Addendum shall have no other effect on any other terms and provisions of the Plan except as set forth below.

1. Definitions

"Separation from Service" means, with respect to a U.S. Participant, any event that may qualify as a separation from service under Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h). A U.S. Participant shall be deemed to have separated from service if he or she dies, retires, or otherwise has a termination of employment as defined under Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h).

"Specified Employee" has the meaning set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(i).

"Termination Date" has the meaning in Section 1.1 of the Plan, provided that if the Termination Date triggers payment of any Award which is "deferred compensation" under Code Section 409A, the Termination Date shall be the date of the Separation from Service.

2. Section 3.4 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Subject to Section 8.2, each Option must be exercised no later than ten (10) years after the date the Option is granted or such shorter period as set out in the Participant's Option Agreement, at which time such Option will expire (the "**Expiry Date**"). Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan and provided that any such extension be structured in a manner that is expected to comply with Code Section 409A (to the extent applicable), each Option that would expire during or within ten (10) Business Days immediately following a Black-Out Period shall expire on the date that is ten (10) Business Days immediately following the expiration of the Black-Out Period; provided, that in all circumstances, each Incentive Stock Option must be exercised no later than ten (10) years after the date the Option is granted."

- Section 5.2 is amended by adding the following new (5): With respect to any DSUs awarded to a U.S. Participant the Compensation Committee shall endeavor to structure the DSU so as to comply with, or be exempt from, Code Section 409A.
- 4. Section 6.2 is amended by adding the following new (5): With respect to any RSUs or PSUs awarded to a U.S. Participant the Compensation Committee shall endeavor to structure the RSU and/or PSU so as to comply with, or be exempt from, Code Section 409A.
- 5. Section 6.4 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

The vesting determination date means the date on which the Compensation Committee determines if the Performance Criteria and/or other vesting conditions with respect to a RSU and/or PSU have been met (the "**Share Unit Vesting Determination Date**"), and as a result, establishes the number of RSUs and/or PSUs that become vested, if any.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the U.S. Participant vests in his or her Share Units pursuant to the Plan in connection with his or her Separation from Service, within 30 days following such U.S. Participant's Separation from Service and subject to Section 9.4, the Company shall (i) issue from treasury the number of Shares that is equal to the number of vested Share Units held by the U.S. Participant as at the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service (rounded down to the nearest whole number), as fully paid and non-assessable Shares, (ii) deliver to the U.S. Participant an amount in cash (net of the applicable tax withholdings) equal to the number of vested Share Units held by the U.S. Participant as at the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service multiplied by the U.S. Participant as at the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service multiplied by the U.S. Participant as at the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service multiplied by the U.S. Participant as at the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service multiplied by the Market Value as at such date, or (iii) a combination of (i) and (ii). Upon settlement of such Share Units, the corresponding number of Share Units shall be cancelled and the U.S. Participant shall have no further rights, title or interest with respect thereto."

6. Section 8.2(4) is amended by deleting clauses (b) and (c) thereof in their entirety and replacing them with the following

b. any reduction in the exercise price of an Award benefitting a U. S. Participant, except in the case of an adjustment pursuant to Section 8.1;

c. any extension of the Expiry Date of an Award benefitting a U.S. Participant, except in case of an extension due to a Black-Out Period; provided that any such extension be structured in a manner that is expected to comply with Code Section 409A (to the extent applicable);

7. No Acceleration

With respect to any Award held by a U.S. Participant that is subject to Code Section 409A, the acceleration of the time or schedule of any payment except as provided under the Plan (including this addendum) is prohibited, except as provided in or permitted by regulations and administrative guidance promulgated under Code Section 409A.

8. Code Section 409A

Each grant of Share Units to a U.S. Participant is intended to be exempt from Code Section 409A. However, to the extent any Award is subject to Section 409A, then

- (a) all payments to be made upon a U.S. Participant's Termination Date shall only be made upon a Separation from Service.
- (b) if on the date of the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service the Company's shares (or shares of any other Company that is required to be aggregated with the Company in accordance with the requirements of Code Section 409A) is publicly traded on an established securities market or otherwise and the U.S. Participant is a Specified Employee, then the benefits payable to the Participant under the Plan that are payable due to the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service shall be postponed until the earlier of the originally scheduled date and six months following the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service. The postponed amount shall be paid to the U.S. Participant in a lump sum within 30 days after the earlier of the originally scheduled date and the date that is six months following the U.S. Participant is six months following the U.S. Participant in a lump sum within 30 days after the earlier of the originally scheduled date and the date that is six months following the U.S. Participant's Separation from Service. If the U.S. Participant dies during such six month period and prior to the payment of the postponed

amounts hereunder, the amounts delayed on account of Code Section 409A shall be paid to the U.S. Participant's estate within 60 days following the U.S. Participant's death.

If any provision of the Plan contravenes Code Section 409A or could cause the U.S. Participant to incur any tax, interest or penalties under Code Section 409A, the Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion and without the U.S. Participant's consent, modify such provision to: (i) comply with, or avoid being subject to, Code Section 409A, or to avoid incurring taxes, interest and penalties under Code Section 409A; and/or (ii) maintain, to the maximum extent practicable, the original intent and economic benefit to the U.S. Participant of the applicable provision without materially increasing the cost to the Company or contravening Code Section 409A. However, the Company shall have no obligation to modify the Plan or any Share Unit and does not guarantee that Share Units will not be subject to taxes, interest and penalties under Code Section 409A.

